
 
County Offices 

Newland 
Lincoln 

LN1 1YL 
 

4 March 2022 
 

Planning and Regulation Committee 
 

A meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee will be held on Monday, 14 March 2022 
at 10.30 am in the Council Chamber, County Offices, Newland, Lincoln LN1 1YL for the 
transaction of business set out on the attached agenda.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Debbie Barnes OBE 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Membership of the Planning and Regulation Committee  
(15 Members of the Council) 
 
Councillors I G Fleetwood (Chairman), T R Ashton (Vice-Chairman), P Ashleigh-Morris, 
Mrs A M Austin, S A J Blackburn, I D Carrington, A M Hall, C S Macey, Mrs A M Newton MBE, 
Mrs M J Overton MBE, N H Pepper, R P H Reid, N Sear, P A Skinner and T J N Smith 
 
 

Public Document Pack





PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE AGENDA 
MONDAY, 14 MARCH 2022 

 
 
Item 
 

Title 
 

Pages 
 

1.  Apologies/replacement members  
 

 

2.  Declarations of Members' Interests  
 

 

3.  Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation 
Committee held on 14 February 2022  
 

5 - 12 

4.  Traffic Items  
 

 

4.1   A607 Main Street, Carlton Scroop - Proposed 30mph speed 
limit  
 

13 - 18 

4.2   Swineshead, Drayton, A52 Abbey Lane - Proposed 50mph 
speed limit  
 

19 - 26 

4.3   Caythorpe, High Street - Proposed Waiting Restrictions and 
Bus Stop Clearways  
 

27 - 30 

5.  County Matter Applications  
 

 

5.1   To vary conditions 1 (expiry date) and 3 (approved 
documents and drawings) of planning permission 141306 at 
land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor – 
Egdon Resources U.K Limited, (Agent AECOM Limited) – 
144203 
 
To vary conditions 1 (development cease date) and 2 
(approved documents and drawings) of planning permission 
141307 at land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey 
Moor – Egdon Resources U.K Limited, (Agent AECOM Limited) 
- 144207  
 

31 - 66 

6.  Other Reports  
 

 

6.1   Seeking authority to make a Prohibition Order to prevent any 
future mineral development taking place at Tetford Hill 
Quarry, Tetford.Periodic Review - permission (E)S177/933/93 
– JEG Farms (Agent SLR Consulting Ltd) - (E)S177/0833/14  
 

67 - 76 

 

 
 
 



Democratic Services Officer Contact Details 
 

Name: Rob Close 
 

Direct Dial 07387 133753 
 

E Mail Address democraticservices@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Please note:  for more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting 
 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports 
 
Contact details set out above. 
 
Please note: This meeting will be broadcast live on the internet and access can be 
sought by accessing Agenda for Planning and Regulation Committee on Monday, 
14th March, 2022, 10.30 am (moderngov.co.uk) 
 
For more information about the Planning process and to view Planning decisions 
please click on the following link:  Planning Portal 
 
All papers for council meetings are available on: 
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records 
 

 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=6230&Ver=4
https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=6230&Ver=4
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/planning/find-planning-application
https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/council-business/search-committee-records


  1 

 
 PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
 14 FEBRUARY 2022 

 

 

PRESENT:  COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN) 
 
Councillors T R Ashton (Vice-Chairman), P Ashleigh-Morris, Mrs A M Austin, S A J Blackburn, 
I D Carrington, A M Hall, Mrs M J Overton MBE, N H Pepper, N Sear, P A Skinner and 
T J N Smith 
 
Councillor: K E Lee attended the meeting as an observer 
 
Councillor: A N Stokes attended the meeting remotely via Microsoft Teams as an observer 
 
Officers in attendance:- 
 
Robert Close (Democratic Services Officer), Jeanne Gibson (Programme Leader: Minor Works 
and Traffic), Neil McBride (Head of Planning) and Kim Robertson (Principal Lawyer) 
 
53     APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors C S Macey, Mrs A M Newton, and R P H 

Reid. 

 
54     DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
No declarations of interest were made with respect to any items on the agenda. 

 
55     MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND REGULATION 

COMMITTEE HELD ON 6 DECEMBER 2021 
 

RESOLVED  

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 December 2021, be approved as a 

correct record, and signed by the Chairman. 

 
56     TRAFFIC ITEMS 

 
 

57     LINCOLN, BELL STREET EDWARD STREET - PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY TIME 
 

The Committee considered a report in connection with one objection received to the 

proposed introduction of waiting restrictions at the junction of Bell Street and Edward Street, 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



2 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
14 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

 

Lincoln. The objection complained that the proposal would inconvenience residents through 

reduced parking availability close to their properties with potential risks to personal safety on 

dark evenings with limited street lighting. However, in the officer’s view parking close to the 

junction either on Bell Street or Edward Street obstructs the flow of traffic in and out of 

Edward Street, and the tendency for vehicles to pull onto the footway then obstructs the route 

for pedestrians.  

On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor P A Skinner, it 

was:  

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

That the objections be overruled so that the order, as advertised, may be introduced. 

 
58     TATTERSHALL THORPE B1192 - PROPOSED 30MPH & 40MPH SPEED LIMITS 

 
The Committee considered a report in connection with a request for the existing 30mph speed 

limit within Tattershall Thorpe to be extended southwards beyond Paul’s Lane and northwards 

along the B1192 as well as a new 40mph limits at either end. Surveys have indicated that these 

changes may be considered as 'Borderline Cases’, as defined within the Council's Speed Limit 

Policy. Therefore, the Planning and Regulation Committee can approve a departure from the 

criteria if appropriate. 

On a motion proposed by Councillor T R Ashton and seconded by Councillor I G Fleetwood, it 

was:  

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

That the objections be overruled so that the order, as advertised, may be introduced. 

 
59     LANGWORTH A158 - REVISED PROPOSAL FOR 30MPH SPEED LIMIT 

 
The Committee considered a report in connection with an amendment to a previously 

approved ‘borderline case’ for a 30mph speed limit within the village. Surveys had indicated 

that the mean speed of traffic in the vicinity of the level crossing was 32mph Therefore, in 

accordance with the speed limit policy the initial proposal can be extended to include the level 

crossing.  

On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor T R Ashton, it 

was:  

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

That the intention to proceed with an extended 30mph speed limit be noted. 

60     LINCOLN, BISHOPS ROAD & DEACON ROAD - PROPOSED NO WAITING AT ANY TIME 
 

Page 6



3 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

14 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

 

The Committee considered a report in connection with one objection received to the 

proposed introduction of waiting restrictions at the junction with accesses on Deacon Road 

and at its junction with Bishops Road. The objection was received from a local business 

complaining that, as their off-road parking space was reserved for customers, staff park on 

street, and would be displaced onto the opposite side of the road, potentially causing a hazard 

for through traffic. However, it was the officer’s view that on street parking reduces visibility 

of oncoming traffic for vehicles exiting these accesses and alternative on street parking is 

available nearby.   

On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor T R Ashton, it 

was:  

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

That the objections be overruled so that the order, as advertised, may be introduced. 

 
61     GRANTHAM, GARDEN CLOSE - PROPOSED WAITING RESTRICTIONS 

 
The Committee considered a report in connection with two objections received to the 

proposed introduction of waiting restrictions at Garden Close in Grantham. The objections 

complained that the private drive outside Numbers 1-4 Garden Close would attract parking 

displaced from the restricted areas, as the public may not realise that it was not public 

highway. However, it was the officer’s view that landowners here are able to install signage 

on their land to indicate the status of the drive or physical measures to restrict access. 

Objectors suggested that to mitigate displacement of parking the restrictions should apply 

throughout the development, but that view was not shared by the Council as this could 

adversely affect those residents who did not have sufficient off-street parking available for 

their own or visitors’ vehicles. 

As local Member for Grantham South, Councillor A N Stokes was invited to address the 

Committee via Microsoft Teams. His comments were as follows: 

 He was in full support of the recommendation and had worked closely with residents 

to progress the proposals.  

 The concerns made by residents on Garden Close could likely be effectively mitigated 

through appropriately placed signage. 

 This Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) was vital for the safety of residents entering and 

egressing Gardens Close and was supported by a majority of residents.   

 

On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor P A Skinner, 

it was:  

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

That the objections be overruled so that the order, as advertised, may be introduced. 

Page 7



4 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
14 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

 

Councillor M Overton MBE left the meeting at this point. 

 
62     LINCOLN, BAILGATE AND CHAPEL LANE - PROPOSED PERMIT PARKING SCHEME 

 
 

The Committee considered a report in connection with the outcome of a statutory public 

consultation for the introduction of a residents’ permit scheme in Bailgate and Chapel Lane 

requested by the City of Lincoln Council. Those stakeholders who were likely to be affected 

were consulted, and broad support was received. Following further consultation, it was 

identified that, generally, residents supported the scheme, believing it would offer significant 

parking convenience, while local businesses objected to the overall loss of parking and 

perceived subsequent loss of trade. In recognition of the divisive proposal, the Committee 

were presented recommendations to either proceed with the scheme as advertised, abandon 

the scheme altogether or agree for further work to identify a permit scheme with a reduced 

impact Bailgate’s commercial activity. 

As local Member for Ermine and Cathedral, Councillor K E Lee was invited to address the 

Committee. Her comments were as follows: 

 She had met with both representatives of the Bailgate Guild and local residents and 

felt she could appreciate concerns from both sides. 

 The accounts of local residents were relayed to the Committee including detail of a 

paramedic who worked long shifts and often started or finished work at very 

unsociable times having to subsequently walk some distance to get to her home in 

darkness which she found frightening and unsafe. A second resident worked as a 

cardiac practitioner on call so needed to get to the hospital to assist in life-or-death 

procedures at short notice despite having to walk to work because she didn’t have a 

convenient place to park her car. A third resident, a retired Bailgate retail owner, 

supported residents’ parking currently and before his retirement. Other residents 

included an elderly suffer of dementia who needed straightforward access to her home 

and a disabled resident whose carers struggled to find parking. Other general daily 

problems included dropping off weekly shops and arranging for a tradesman to be able 

to access homes for repairs. 

 Residents of streets near Bailgate had been awarded parking permits which made the 

residents of Bail gate feel that they were being treated unfairly. 

 Councillor Lee felt the results of a survey, stating 59 responses were against while 33 

were in support, were misleading as the hostility faced by residents resulted in one 

person responding on behalf on of 24 residents. Of the 59 responses against the 

proposals, only 18 were submitted from local traders and 70 per cent were received 

from visitors to the area. 

 The spaces identified in option one of the recommendations sat in the residential area 

of Bailgate and, Councillor Lee felt, were a substantial enough distance from 

businesses to mitigate any detrimental effect. Furthermore, she suggested that visitor 

Page 8



5 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

14 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

 

parking spaces were available on Highgate, Castle Hill Car Park, and the Westgate Car 

Park which, in her experience, appeared to be available at peak times. 

 She commented that there was no evidence to support speculation that granting 

residents’ parking places would come into conflict with local business viability citing 

previous changes to Bailgate including pedestrianisation and loss of significant 

enterprises. 

 If the Committee were minded supporting option three, she suggested that they 

consider inclusion of a robust timeframe which would identify progress and 

finalisation. 

Members asked where currently residents of Bailgate and Chapel Lane parked and if the City 

of Lincoln Council offered long term parking scheme for residents. The Programme Leader for 

Minor Works and Traffic advised that residents currently undertook their own private 

arrangements for parking with local organisations or used on street parki ng on the highway 

some distance away.  

Noting the number of properties in the area, Members asked how many spaces were 

available. The Programme Leader for Minor Works and Traffic advised that there were 50 

properties, entitled to two permits each, competing for 32 parking places. However, the costs 

involved often discouraged a total take up of permits.  

Observing the parking allowances made to Blue Badge holders, Members asked if the 

proposed one-hour parking limited would extend to those Blue Badge holders. The 

Programme Leader for Minor Works and Traffic clarified that Blue Badge holders would be 

exempt from such restrictions. 

Concerns were raised on the issue of parking displacement as a result of imposed restrictions. 

The Programme Leader for Minor Works and Traffic suggested that, if the Committee were 

minded to resolve for further investigation, then consideration would be given to an 

alternative scheme to accommodate permit parking in the area.  

Some Members noted that Lincoln had significant amounts of other car parks to provide retail 

accessibility, furthermore, increased distances pedestrians would have to travel to their 

destination after parking would increase footfall in other areas and stimulate the local 

economy. 

Members raised concerns that option one of the recommendations would severely limit the 

shorter stay parking provisions relied on by commercial and retail enterprises. While it was 

appreciated that the parking bays may not be as highly occupied during the day, the night-

time economy and tourism could be particularly impacted. The Bailgate area was considered 

by Members to be a key area for tourism and trade. Ultimately, they felt that further 

investigations would enable wider stakeholder satisfaction.  

It was suggested by Members that they felt their determination of this application would be 

greatly informed by a site visit.  

Page 9



6 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 
14 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

 

On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor N H Pepper, it 

was:  

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

1. That further work to identify a means by which a permit scheme may be introduced 

in some form be undertaken with a view to reduce the potential impact on Bailgate’s 

economy and community. 

 

2. That, prior to any further consideration Planning and Regulation Committee, 

Members of the Committee by offered the opportunity for a site visit. 

 
63     COUNTY MATTER APPLICATIONS 

 
 

64     FOR THE DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING ANIMAL BY-PRODUCTS PROCESSING PLANT 
AND ALL ASSOCIATED INSTALLATIONS AND THE CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW ANIMAL 
BY-PRODUCTS PROCESSING PLANT, COMPRISED OF: RAW MATERIAL RECEPTION 
AND PROCESSING BUILDINGS; ENGINEERS BUILDING; BOILER HOUSE; OXIDISER 
BUILDING AND FLUE; DAF PLANT; EFFLUENT TREATMENT PLANT; BIO FILTER BED; 
GENERAL OFFICE; WEIGHBRIDGE AND WEIGHBRIDGE OFFICE; HARDSTANDING 
AREAS FOR ACCESSING THE PROCESSING PLANT AND FOR PARKING OF CARS, 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLES AND TRAILERS USED IN CONNECTION WITH THE 
OPERATION; ALTERATIONS TO THE EXISTING SITE ACCESS FROM JERUSALEM ROAD; 
AND ALL ASSOCIATED DEVELOPMENT, INCLUDING LANDSCAPING AT JERUSALEM 
FARM, JERUSALEM ROAD, SKELLINGTHORPE - DS DEVELOPING LIMITED (AGENT: 
MAZE PLANNING SOLUTIONS) - 20/0550/CCC 
 

The Committee were advised that, at the 15 February 2021 meeting of the Planning and 

Regulation Committee, an application for the demolition of the existing animal by products 

processing plant and all associated installations and the construction of a new animal by-

products processing plant was approved, subject to the officer recommended planning 

conditions and the application entering into and completing a Section 106 agreement. 

Despite being finalised and sent to the applicant; the Section 106 agreement hadn’t been 

signed. Furthermore, the applicant indicated that they no longer wished to commit to the 

obligation. However, since publication of this agenda, the applicant had committed to the 

completion of the Section 106 agreement therefore officers recommended that the 

Committee withdraw the report from consideration.  

On a motion proposed by Councillor I G Fleetwood and seconded by Councillor T R Ashton, it 

was:  

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

That this application be withdrawn. 

 

Page 10



7 
PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 

14 FEBRUARY 2022 
 

 

65     OTHER REPORTS 
 
 

66     TO REMOVE CONDITION 6 OF PLANNING PERMISSION B/16/0217 - TO ALLOW 
OUTSIDE STORAGE WHEN THE SITE IS NOT IN OPERATION AT REED POINT, SPALDING 
ROAD, SUTTERTON - ENVIROTYRE UK LIMITED (AGENT: ROBERT DOUGHTY 
CONSULTANCY LIMITED) - B/20/0474 
 

The Committee were advised that the decision to refuse planning permission relating to an 

application to remove condition six from planning permission B/16/0217, which would enable 

outside storage of tyres to take place when the site was not in operation, was appealed by the 

applicant, and on 27 January 2022, the Planning Inspectorate allowed the appeal with a partial 

award for costs made. 

RESOLVED (unanimous)  

That the update be noted. 

 
The meeting closed at 11.45 am 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 14 March 2022 

Subject: A607 Main Street, Carlton Scroop - Proposed 30mph speed limit  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers a request for the existing 40mph speed limit through Carlton Scroop to be 
reduced to 30mph as shown at Appendix B.  Investigations have indicated that this site may be 
considered as a 'Borderline Case', as defined within the Council's Speed Limit Policy. 

 

 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee approves the speed limit reduction so that the necessary consultation 
process to bring it into effect may be pursued. 

 

 
Background 
 
The County Council's Speed Limit Policy provides a means by which requests for speed limits can be 
assessed consistently throughout the county. The criteria by which a speed limit may be justified 
within a village location is based on the number of units of development along a road and the level 
of limit is determined by the mean speed of traffic travelling along it. However, having carried out 
an assessment, a Borderline Case may be identified and is defined within the policy at 4.1 and 4.2 
as follows: 
 
4.1 During the assessment process, at locations where the length and number of development units 
fronting the road under review is within 20% of that required, then this is classed as a Borderline 
Case. 
4.2 At locations where the mean speed data falls within +/- 3mph of Table 3 (Mean Speeds), then 
this is classed as a Borderline Case. 
 
Where the above applies a report will be submitted to the Planning and Regulation Committee for 
consideration. 
 
In the case of the above location a 40 mph speed limit is already in place and it will therefore be the 
results of speed surveys which identify it as a Borderline Case. Speed surveys completed at the two 
sites identified at Appendix B measured mean speeds of 35 and 36mph, an average of 35.5, which 
lies within 3mph of the level required to justify a 30mph speed limit, as specified in Table 3 from the 
policy: 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4.1



 
 
This can therefore be considered as a Borderline Case and the Committee may approve the initiation 
of the speed limit order process to reduce the current 40mph speed limit to 30mph. A plan indicating 
the extent of the 30mph limit suggested is shown at Appendix B. There have been no reported injury 
accidents on this route during the last five years. 
 
Conclusion 
 
Under the normal criteria set out in the speed limit policy this location would qualify for 40mph 
speed limit. However, as a borderline case the Planning and Regulation Committee may approve a 
departure from the criteria where appropriate and approve a reduction to a 30mph limit at this 
location. 
 
Consultation 
 

aa) Risks and Impact Analysis 
NN/A 

Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Site location 

Appendix B Proposed 30mph speed limit 

 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied upon in 
the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Speed survey data Available on request 

 
This report was written by Jamie Earls, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 14



APPENDIX A 

 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Key

Existing 30mph Speed Limit

Proposed 30mph Speed Limit

NORTH

A3

 
N

o
v
 
2
4
,
2
0
2
1
 
-
 
1
1
:
5
9
a
m

 
G

:
\
c
o
m

m
o
n
\
T

r
a
f
f
i
c
 
R

e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
O

r
d
e
r
s
\
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 
M

a
s
t
e
r
 
F

o
l
d
e
r
 
D

O
 
N

O
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E
\
2
0
1
 
-
 
5
0
0
\
2
4
4
 
A

6
0
7
 
C

a
r
l
t
o
n
 
S

c
r
o
o
p
 
S

p
e
e
d
 
R

e
v
i
e
w

\
C

A
D

\
A

p
p
e
n
d
i
x
 
B

.
d
w

g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Rev.
Description

Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House,36 Orchard Street,

Lincoln,LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020

Ordnance Survey 100025370.

NTS @A3

0

Carlton Scroop Speed Limit Review

Appendix B - Proposed Speed Limit

JE
11/21

H/JE/935/001

Mean Speed 36 Mph

Mean Speed 35 Mph

P
age 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
Meadow

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
Sewage Works

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
North Drift

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
The Laurels

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
Coach and Horses

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
Cainas Cott

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
Aymon

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Carlton

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
Honington Beck

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
A 607

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
Brooklands

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
SUDBROOK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
South Drift

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
Daedelus

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
Stream

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
The Paddocks

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
Stone

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
Old Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
Scroop

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
CHARITY STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
Manor

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
The Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
View

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Glenville

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Craft

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Amberley

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
The Byre

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Chestnut Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Golf Driving Range

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
HEATH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Dismantled

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
Honington Beck

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
1.22m RH

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Def

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
CS

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Golf Course

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
St Nicholas's Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
HOUGH LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
A 607

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Beck

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
NEWARK LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
The Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Honington

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
The Row

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
Dismantled Railway

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
Carlton Scroop Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Ponds

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Tisdale

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Green Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Ruin

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Ruin

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
MAIN STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Waylands

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
The Nook

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
The Old Rectory

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
The Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
Sycamore

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
Lodge Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
Rose Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
North

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
The Harbour

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
Lodge Cottages

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Edelweiss

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
Flight

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
The Belvoir

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
Edgemoor

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
The School House

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
Heathermore

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Ash House

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
The Grange

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Shelter

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
Ruin

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
2



T
his page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 14 March 2022 

Subject: Swineshead, Drayton, A52 Abbey Lane - Proposed 50mph speed limit  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers objections to the proposed reduction in speed limit on the A52 at Drayton 
from 60mph to 50mph. 

 

 

Recommendation(s): 

That the Committee overrules the objections so that the Order, as advertised, may be 
introduced. 

 

 
Background 
 
Following concerns regarding the collision statistics along the A52 from its junction with South Street 
up to and including the staggered crossroads at The Drayton and Blackjack Road, the Road Safety 
Partnership requested investigations into a potential reduction in speed limit along this stretch. Six 
reported injury accidents have been recorded here over the last five years, two of which were fatal. 
Currently the national speed limit is in force.  As there is insufficient development along this length 
to justify the introduction of a speed limit on that basis, it has been assessed under the criteria for 
a rural limit where the number of reported injury accidents and traffic flow are taken into 
consideration to provide an accident rate. The level of limit to be imposed is determined by the 
mean speed of traffic and how this correlates to the level of limit shown in Table 4 of the policy: 
 

 
 
The accident rate has been calculated at 37 and is therefore sufficient to justify a new limit, and a 
speed survey has determined a mean speed of traffic of 47mph, indicating that a 50mph limit may 
be introduced in accordance with the speed limit policy. The proposed extent of the new limit is 
shown at Appendix B. 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4.2



A number of objections have been received in response to the consultation for this order. Objectors 
request that the proposed limit is reduced further to 40 or 30mph. They are aware of events 
involving collisions and damage to property in the area and believe a lower limit will reduce the 
frequency of these. 
 
These concerns are noted. However, the extent and level of speed limit proposed here is in line with 
our speed limit policy criteria. Although lowering a speed limit will reduce traffic speeds it needs to 
be set at a level which the majority of drivers will see as reasonable and therefore adhere to. Limits 
set too low may lead to driver frustration and injudicious overtaking as highly inconsistent vehicle 
speeds make it difficult to judge the speed of oncoming vehicles. It is for these reasons that the 
policy prescribes the various criteria needing to be met. 
 
Requests have also been received for the proposed limit to be extended further south to include the 
roundabout intersection with the A17.  
 
Vehicle speeds on the approaches to both of the roundabouts further south will drop regardless of 
any limit imposed owing to the change in road layout. In addition, the short distance between the 
A17 and South Street roundabout renders high speed difficult to achieve. In any case the policy 
criteria for the introduction of a limit further south are not currently met. The rationale behind the 
terminal points being located on leaving the roundabout at South Street is to inform drivers of the 
restriction so they can manage their increase in speed appropriately. 
 
Conclusion 
 
The proposed 50mph speed limit at this location complies with the criteria set out in the Council's 
speed limit policy. It is anticipated the road safety along this section of the A52 will be improved, in 
particular at the staggered junctions with The Drayton and Blackjack Road, where a number of road 
traffic collisions have occurred. 

Consultation 
 
a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

The following were consulted with regards to this proposal: Cllr Brookes, Lincolnshire Road Safety 
Partnership, Lincolnshire Police, Boston Borough Council, Swineshead Parish Council, Lincolnshire 
Fire & Rescue, East Midlands Ambulance Trust, Traffic Commissioners, Confederation of Public 
Transport, Stagecoach East Midlands, PC Coaches, Brylaine, Road Haulage Association, Freight 
Transport Association and the National Farmers Union. 
 
The proposal was advertised in the Boston & Sleaford Standard on 29 September 2021 with the 
objection period ending on 15 October 2021. The documents were also available on the County 
Council’s website 

Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Site location 

Appendix B Detail of proposed 50mph speed limit 

 
 
 

Page 20



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied upon in 
the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Collision statistics Available on request 

Speed survey data Available on request 

Objections Available on request 

 
 
This report was written by Tina Featherstone, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



NORTH

A3

 
M

a
r
 
0
3
,
2
0
2
2
 
-
 
1
2
:
2
1
p
m

 
\
\
h
p
c
e
n
1
\
u
s
e
r
s
\
u
s
e
r
s
\
c
o
m

m
o
n
\
T

r
a
f
f
i
c
 
R

e
g
u
l
a
t
i
o
n
 
O

r
d
e
r
s
\
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 
M

a
s
t
e
r
 
F

o
l
d
e
r
 
D

O
 
N

O
T

 
C

H
A

N
G

E
\
2
0
1
 
-
 
5
0
0
\
2
9
1
 
A

5
2
 
T

h
e
 
D

r
a
y
t
o
n
 
S

p
e
e
d
 
L
i
m

t
\
C

A
D

\
C

A
D

.
d
w

g

Project

Status Project No.

Scale

Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Project

Rev.

Description

Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House,36 Orchard Street,Lincoln,LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020

Ordnance Survey 100025370.

Drayton - A52 Abbey Lane

Appendix B

Proposed 50mph Speed Limit

NTS

TF Aug 21

GB Aug 21

TF/291/001 0

KEY

Proposed 50mph

Existing 60mph

Existing 40mph

Existing 30mph

Page 25

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
Acacia

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Threeways

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Homeland

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
Homeland

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
SWIN CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
HUBBA CRESCENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
BULLEN'S LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
Pellican

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
Rest

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
Brandywell

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
The Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
Field View

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
The Coach House

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Ivy

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
Magnolia

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
High Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
ABBEY LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Fair View

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Barn

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Coach

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
The Sycamores

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Bluebell Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
The Dales

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
Grove Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
Guildford

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
Track

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
Montrose

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
Coney Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
Lay-by

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
BLACKJACK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
Drayton

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
Rosedene

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
Holmefield

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
Garage

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
Farm

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
Drayton

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
GP

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
Crossgates

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
Corner

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
Drain

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
Crossgates

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
Bungalow

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
West View

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
HERRING RIG LANE (TRACK)

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
Sewage

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
Drayton

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
Ppg Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
A 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
A 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
A 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
A 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
A 52

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
Coney Hill

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
THE DRAYTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
THE DRAYTON

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
SOUTH STREET



This page is intentionally left blank



       
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson, Executive Director - Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 14 March 2022 

Subject: 
Caythorpe, High Street - Proposed Waiting Restrictions and Bus Stop 
Clearways  

Decision Reference:   Key decision? No   

Summary:  

This report considers objections received during the public advertisement of the above 
proposals. 

 

 

Recommendation(s): 

That the objections are overruled and the Order as advertised is introduced. 
 

 
Background 
 
Members may remember that last July a report was submitted to this Committee outlining 
objections to the above proposals following statutory consultation. The proposed waiting 
restrictions and bus stop clearways aim to improve access for the local bus service, and general 
traffic flow through the village, particularly at school start and finish times. Restrictions on parking 
were also proposed at the junction of High Street with South Street where parking restricts traffic 
flow and visibility, and obstructs the passage of pedestrians trying to cross here. 
 
The Committee considered the objections and resolved to overrule them so the proposals could be 
publicly advertised. Subsequently documents relating to these proposals were delivered to all 
affected frontages as part of the advertisement process and further objections were received which 
relate to the proposed restrictions at the junction of South Parade with High Street.  
 
There is concern that the reduction of on street parking in the vicinity of the shop will affect the 
viability of that business which has been valuable to the community during the pandemic, and that 
availability of on street parking for nearby residents will be reduced, along with property values. The 
objectors request that the proposed extent of the restrictions be reduced to mitigate these effects. 
A further request has been received for an additional length of restriction to be introduced further 
south beyond the proposed bus stop clearway opposite private driveways to aid vehicular access in 
and out of them, as currently parking opposite these accesses reduces the available width to carry 
out these manoeuvres. 
 
 
 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4.3



Comments 
 
It has been established that parked vehicles at the junction of South Parade with High St obstruct 
vehicle movements in and out of this junction and compromise pedestrian safety by blocking the 
dropped kerb facilities. 
 
The extent of the proposed restrictions will displace a small number of vehicles and alternative on 
street parking is available nearby.  
 
Throughout the scheme the intention is to restrict parking only where it is necessary. This being the 
case the request for additional restrictions further south opposite No.s 16 – 22 High Street is not 
supported. 
 
Conclusion 

The proposed restrictions are the minimum required which will improve traffic flow for general 
traffic, and in particular for buses, whilst minimally impacting on the availability of on street parking. 
The restrictions will apply only where the presence of parked vehicles potentially causes obstruction 
or danger to other highway users. 
 
Consultation 
 
The following have been consulted with regard to these proposals: Local Member;  
Lincolnshire Police; EMAS; SKDC; Fire & Emergency Planning; Caythorpe Parish Council; Caythorpe 
Primary School; Road Haulage Association; Freight Transport Association; Stagecoach; Sleafordian 
Coaches; AC Williams Coaches. 
 
a)  Risks and Impact Analysis 

N/A 

Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Detail of proposals 

 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied upon in 
the writing of this report. 
 

Document 
title 

Where the document can be viewed 

Earlier report 
to this 
Committee 

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s32760/Cttee%20Caythorpe.pdf 
                                                                                                                                                        

 
This report was written by Dan O'Neill, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
TRO@lincolnshire.gov.uk. 

Page 28

https://lincolnshire.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s32760/Cttee%20Caythorpe.pdf


NORTH

A4

 
M

a
r
 
1
7
,
2
0
2
0
 
-
 
1
:
4
4
p
m

 
G

:
\
c
o
m

m
o
n
\
D

a
n
 
O

 
N

e
i
l
l
\
S

c
h
o
o
l
 
p
a
r
k
i
n
g
 
i
s
s
u
e
s
\
C

o
r
r
e
s
p
o
n
d
e
n
c
e
\
C

a
y
t
h
o
r
p
e
 
H

i
g
h
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
\
C

a
y
t
h
o
r
p
e
 
H

i
g
h
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
.
d
w

g

© Crown copyright and database rights 2020

Ordnance Survey 100025370.

Project

Status

Scale

Drawn

Ch'kd

Auth

Traced

Date

Date

Drawing No. Rev.

Drawing Title

Rev.

Description

Drawn Ch'kd Auth Date

Project No.

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Lancaster House

36 Orchard Street

Lincoln

LN1 1XX

Lincolnshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

Highways Alliance

Caythorpe

High Street and South Parade

Proposed Waiting Restrictions

nts

DON Mar 2020

D/142041/5 0

Page 29

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
Play Area

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
36

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
8a

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
ORCHARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
62b

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
62a

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
Lincoln

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
47a

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
7a

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
5a

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
HOLY CROSS GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
18a

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
Pond

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
25

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
17a

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
The Paddock

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
38

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
Sycamores

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
52 to

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
56

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
Red Lion

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
and

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
Richmond

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
69

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
BACK LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
23

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
EASTCLIFFE SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
Churston

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
HIGH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
46

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
Lantern

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
SOUTH PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
58

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
Loveden Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
45

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
48

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
Pol Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
37

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
Primary School

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
CHAPEL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
ARNHEM DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
Lead Horse House

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
43

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
Waggon

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
(PH)

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
The Caythorpe

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
22

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
Mulberry

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
Old

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
Jay House

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
Horses

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
12a

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
60

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
Pavilion

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
Closefields

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
Hill View

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
Marden

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
OLD LINCOLN ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
35

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
63

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
Ash House

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
Quoin Stones

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
School View

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
Hawthorns

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
Westley

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
Cottage

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
Lawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
Ranch

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
THE WOODYARD

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
Edale

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
7

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
The

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
TEMPLEWAY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
TEMPLEWAY SQUARE

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
Templars

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
Woodyard

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
Tump

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
Gables

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
Lodge

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
Caythorpe

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
Chapel Green

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
House

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
Local Shop

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
Appendix A

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
 Proposed no waiting at any time  Proposed bus stop clearway Mon-Fri 8am - 6pm  Proposed no waiting Mon-Fri 8am - 4pm



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

  
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson - Executive Director for Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 14 March 2022 

Subject: County Matter Applications – 144203 and 144207 

 

Summary: 

Planning permission is sought by Egdon Resources U.K. Limited (Agent:  AECOM 
Limited): 
 
To vary conditions 1 (development cease date) and 3 (approved documents and 
drawings) of planning permission 141306; and 
 
To vary conditions 1 (development cease date) and 2 (approved documents and 
drawings) of planning permission 141307 
 
Both applications seek to amend the date by which the restoration of the two sites need 
to be completed and to vary the direction of drilling to secure an optimal ‘bottom hole 
target location’ within the North Kelsey Prospect.  The principle of both the 
developments subject of these applications has been established and consequently the 
key issue, in these cases, is to consider if the proposed extension of time and a revised 
direction of drilling would materially change effects on amenity, since the grant of these 
permissions.  In considering these applications it is acknowledged that the effects of the 
COVID-19 pandemic have contributed to delays in securing contracts and services across 
many areas of industry and continued beyond initial expectations of how long the 
pandemic would last.  
 

 

Recommendation: 

Following consideration of the relevant development plan policies and the comments 
received through consultation and publicity it is recommended that conditional planning 
permissions be granted. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5.1



Background 
 
1. In December 2014 a temporary planning permission (reference: 131952) was 

granted for the drilling of an exploratory borehole and carrying out of production 
tests at land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor, Market Rasen.  The 
purpose of the development was to test an identified underlying oil reservoir to 
determine whether there were commercially viable reserves of conventional 
hydrocarbons available.  The potential oil reserves were to be accessed by 
conventional drilling.  The development granted by this permission was lawfully 
implemented and works carried out before the expiration of the temporary three-
year period. 

 
2. In May 2018 a further planning permission was granted (reference: 137302) which 

amended condition 1 attached to permission 131952 to extend the period of time 
to carry out the temporary operations and to drill the exploratory borehole at the 
site.  A further planning permission (reference: 139426) was granted 1 July 2019 
which varied several conditions attached to permission 137302 which allowed 
changes to the layout of the site, the means for managing surface water run-off, 
and changes to fencing and bunding.  In September 2020 a further planning 
permission (reference: 141306) extended the period within which to complete the 
restoration of the site.  This is the permission currently controlling operations at 
the site and is the subject of the latest application.  Condition 1 of permission 
141306 currently states: 

 
The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 31 December 2021 and 
by the date all portable buildings, plant and machinery associated with the use 
hereby permitted shall have been removed, the well capped and the land returned 
to its previous use as agricultural land. 

 
Reason: To provide for the completion of the exploratory operations in the  
interests of the amenity of the area. 

 
3. Condition 3 of the planning permission also sets out a suite of approved 

documents and plans which the development is required to be carried out in 
accordance with.  Condition 3 states: 

 
Except as otherwise required by other conditions attached to this permission the 
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
following documents and drawings: 

 
Documents 

 
•  Ref: 20271/A5/P6/VY/SO Rev 02 – 'Planning and Sustainability Statement' 

received 29 December 2017 as amended by Addendum to Planning and 
Sustainability Statement (received 17 April 2019); 

•  Ref: Appendix 1 July 2016 – 'Site Closure and Restoration' received (29 
December 2017); 

Page 32



•  Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Geology, Flood Risk and Pollution 
Control' received (1 September 2014); 

•  Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Transport & Traffic' received (01 
September 2014); 

•  Report number: 2636.01/ifb – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise Emissions' 
received (01 September 2014); 

• Ref: 2636.02 – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise Emissions – Additional 
Information' received (03 December 2014); and 

 
Drawings 

 
•  Ref: 3336 P01 Site Location Plan (received 01 September 2014); 
•  Ref: 3336 P02 Site of Application (received 01 September 2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-03 - General Layout Plan (received 12 June 2019); 
•  Ref: 3336 P04 Access Track – Existing Ground Plan (received 01 September 

2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-05 Access Track – Proposed Layout (received 12 June 2019); 
•  Ref: 3336 P06 Proposed Site – Existing Ground Plan (received 01 September 

2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-07 Proposed Site – Construction Mode (received 17 April 

2019); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-08 Proposed Site – Drilling Mode (received 17 April 2019); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-10 Proposed Site – Testing Mode (Indicative) (received 17 

April 2019); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-12 Section A-A Section through Track (received 17 April 

2019); 
•  Ref: 3336 P13 Rev A Proposed Sections Drilling Mode (received 01 September 

2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-14 Site Construction Sections (received 17 April 2019); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-15 Sightlines & Site Entrance Details (received 12 June 

2019); 
•  Ref: 3336 P19 Cabin Plans and Elevations (received 01 September 2014); 
•  Ref: 3336 T05 Existing Layby on Smithfield Road Upgrade Details (received 17 

November 2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-16 Proposed Access & Egress at Site Entrance (received 12 

June 2019); and 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA17 – Proposed Site Retention Mode (received 17 April 2019). 

 
Reason: To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to monitor and control the 
development. 
 

4. In July 2019 approval for the construction of a security compound adjacent to the 
exploratory well site was granted (ref: 139434).  This planning permission was 
subsequently varied in September 2020 (ref: 141307) to extend the period within 
which to complete the restoration of the site.  This is the current permission 
relating to the security compound and is the subject of the latest application. 
Condition 1 states: 

Page 33



 
The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 31 December 2021 and 
by the date all portable buildings, plant and machinery associated with the use 
hereby permitted shall have been removed, the well capped and the land returned 
to its previous use as agricultural land.  

 
Reason: To provide for the completion of the exploratory operations in the interests 
of the amenity of the area 

 
Condition 2 sets out the documents and plans that the approved development is 
required to be carried out in accordance with and states: 

 
The development hereby permitted shall be retained in accordance with the 
following documents and plans, unless modified by the conditions attached to this 
planning permission: 

 
•  Planning Application Form (date stamped received 17 April 2019); 
•  Document Reference: 20271/A5/P7/VY/SO – 'Planning Statement' (date 

stamped received 17 April 2019); 
•  Drawing No: Drawing No: ZG-ER-NK-SWC-PA-03 – 'Security& Welfare 

Compound Layout' (date stamped received 12 June 2019); and 
•  Drawing No: ZG-ER-NK-SWC-PA-04 – 'Temporary Security & Welfare 

Compound Indicative Floor Space Plan (date stamped received 08 May 2019). 
 

Reason: To ensure that the development is retained in all respects in  
accordance with the approved details. 

 
5. In resolving to grant a further period of 12 months to carry out the exploratory 

drilling, testing, retain security compound and restore both sites, the Planning and 
Regulations Committee minutes of the September 2020 meeting state ‘The 
extension, if approved, should be the final extension given by the Council unless 
there were good reasons otherwise’. 

 
6. The applicant has made an application in accordance with Section 73A of the Town 

and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) which allows for conditions attached 
to planning permissions for developments that have been implemented to be 
amended or varied and, in this instance, seeks to amend permission 141306.  In 
addition, the applicant submitted a second application in accordance with Section 
73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) which allows for 
conditions attached to planning permissions to be amended or varied, and in this 
instance, seeks to amend permission 141307.  Details of the proposed 
amendments and information supporting the application are set out in this report. 

 
The Application 
 
7. Two separate but inter-related planning applications have been submitted by 

Egdon Resources UK Ltd (Agent: AECOM) that seek permission to vary conditions 1 

Page 34



and condition 3 of planning permission reference: 141306 and conditions 1 and 2 
of planning permission 141307.  The proposed variations would: 

 
- extend the period allowed to restore the site and identify the direction of 
drilling at land, and: 
 
allow the retention of the security compound for a longer period by 
extending the date by which the land affected by that development is 
required to be restored.   

  
Proposed Amendment – Extension of Time 
 
8. Firstly, for both applications the applicant is seeking to extend the restoration 

period specified in Condition 1 attached to each permission.  The extended period 
would allow a further period of 12 months to carry out the exploratory operations 
and complete the required restoration of the sites.  The amended wording 
proposed for each Condition 1 would read as follows: 

 
The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 12 months from the 
date of this decision and by that date all portable buildings, plant and machinery 
associated with the use hereby permitted shall have been removed, the well capped 
and the land returned to its previous use as agricultural land.  

 
9. The extension of time is requested because, owing largely to the restriction of 

movements arising from the second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic, which had 
only been lifted from July 2021, has brought operational constraints in securing 
materials and personnel.  The planning agent (AECOM) for the applicant states that 
there has consequently been insufficient time for the Site to be constructed, the 
well to be drilled and tested and therefore for the Site to be restored by 31st 
December 2021.  The proposed amendments would not extend the scope of the 
development already permitted which remains for the exploration and evaluation 
of the North Kelsey Prospect, which has known reserves of conventional oil and gas 
only.  The proposed works would still be carried out in four separate phases which 
are as follows: 

 
•  Phase 1: Construction of the Drill Site (approximately 6-7 weeks); 
•  Phase 2: Operational Phase (approximately 8 weeks); 
•  Phase 3: Operational Phase (testing) (approximately 28 weeks); and 
•   Phase 4: Site Restoration (6 weeks to complete). 
 

10. Additional information regarding the nature of the drill rig being proposed has also 
been provided as part of this application which confirms that the rig is expected to 
be the MDG Rig 18 which would have a maximum working height of 50m and 
includes (but not limited to) ancillary drilling equipment for construction of an 
exploratory borehole, including tool pusher cabin, tool house, generators and fuel 
tanks, matting board, blow out preventers and manifold.  

 

Page 35



11. Secondly, the applicant has now provided information as to the location of the 
bottom of the proposed exploratory well.  Since September 2020 further detailed 
well planning has taken place to satisfy the Regulations overseen by the Health & 
Safety Executive and the Environment Agency and the existing three-dimensional 
(3D) seismic data over the area has been re-evaluated.  This new interpretation has 
shown that the existing planned vertical well would not optimally test the prospect 
at the Ashover Grit reservoir interval at the most elevated depth in the sub-surface 
where oil is expected to be trapped.  In simple terms, a vertical well from the North 
Kelsey Wellsite could miss the primary target.  This re-evaluation has therefore 
identified that a change to the proposed ‘bottom hole target location’ is required, 
and that the proposed North Kelsey exploration well needs to be drilled 
directionally from the existing surface location to a bottom hole location 
approximately 700m in a north -west direction.  The bottom of the hole would be 
at a depth more than 1.0 kilometres below ground level. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
12. In order to reflect these changes amendments to the planning statements for each 

application and replacement plans referenced within condition 2 of permission 
141306 and condition 3 of permission 141307 are proposed.  

‘Bottom Hole’ Target Location  

 

Page 36



 
13. The applicant has provided further information advising that the original 

calculations in respect of HGV movements, timescale for carrying out all phases 
and volume of waste arising from the drilling operations had included a generous 
contingency to allow for any variations in drilling operations.  The off-vertical 
drilling would equate to approximately 200 metres additional drilled borehole 
length, with a hole diameter of 216mm that would in turn equate to an additional 
7 to 10 cubic metres of extracted rock.  It is therefore confirmed that the carrying 
out of the eight-week drilling operations including mobilisation and demobilisation 
are sufficient to achieve the deviated well objective.  

 
Site and Surroundings 
 
14. The application site lies approximately 1.3 km north of Moortown, 2.8km 

southeast of North Kelsey and 4.5km southwest of Caistor.  The sites are accessed 
off Smithfield Road.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
15. Smithfield Road is a single-track that has in accordance with approved details, been 

developed to create a passing place suitable to allow two HGV’s to pass 
(Photograph 2). 

 
 

Photograph 1 Site Entrance as constructed 2018 

 

Page 37



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
16. Additional widening works at the at the junction of Smithfield Road and the B1434 

were also undertaken, to ensure that HGV’s have sufficient space to manoeuvre 
into and out of Smithfield Road (Photograph 3). 

 

 
 

 
17. The sites themselves are agricultural land (Photograph 4) approximately 150 

metres east of Smithfield Road (Photograph 5).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Photograph 2 Passing place  

 

Photograph 3 Road Widening at Junction Smithfield Road and B1434 

 

Page 38



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
18. The surrounding area is predominantly in agricultural use with trees and hedges 

along field boundaries ranging from sparse to dense planting.  Immediately to the 
south of the route of the access track is a ditch and to the south of this ditch is a 
line of trees. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
19. A railway line lies to the east of the application site and the distant landscape is 

delineated by the hills of the Lincolnshire Wolds AONB along the edge of which are 

Photograph 4 Wellsite and Security Compound site 

 

Photograph 5 View of sites from Smithfield Road 

Page 39



several telecommunications towers.  The southern boundary of the site is lined by 
mature hedgerows and trees.  The western boundary has several individual trees, 
whereas the northern and eastern boundaries are completely open, being part of a 
wider field. 

 
Main Planning Considerations 
 
Planning Policy Context 
 
20. The National Planning Policy Framework (July 2021) sets out the Government's 

planning policies for England.  It is a material consideration in determination of 
planning applications and adopts a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development.  A number of paragraphs are of particular relevance to this 
application as summarised: 

 
Paragraphs 7 to 11 (Sustainable Development) directs planning authorities to 
consider the economic, social and environmental impacts of development and the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development.  

 
Paragraph 119 (Making effective use of land) states that planning decisions should 
promote an effective use of land while safeguarding the environment and living 
conditions 

 
Paragraph 152 and 157 (Climate change) states that the planning system should 
support the transition to a low carbon future 

 
Paragraphs 174 to 182 (Natural Environment) states that planning decisions should 
contribute to enhancing and protecting the natural and local environment.   

 
Paragraphs 183 to 187 (Ground conditions and pollution) states decisions should 
ensure that a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground 
conditions and appropriate for its location taking into account the likely effects 
(including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and the 
natural environment.  The focus of planning policies and decisions should be on 
whether proposed development is an acceptable use of land, rather than the 
control of processes or emissions (where these are subject to separate pollution 
control regimes).  Planning decisions should assume that these regimes will 
operate effectively.  Equally, where a planning decision has been made on a 
particular development, the planning issues should not be revisited through the 
permitting regimes operated by pollution control authorities. 

 
Paragraphs 209 to 215 (Facilitating the sustainable use of mineral including oil, gas 
and coal exploration and extraction) – directs planning authorities to facilitate the 
sustainable use of minerals by ensuring sufficient supply and no unacceptable 
adverse impacts 
 

Page 40



Paragraphs 218 to 220 (Implementation) states that policies in this Framework are 
material considerations and due weight should be given to existing plans according 
to their degree of consistency with this Framework. 

 
Planning Practice Guidance 'Minerals' - in March 2014 the Government published a 
series of web-based Planning Policy Guidance (PPG).  The PPG relating to Minerals 
sets out the overall requirements for minerals sites, including in relation to 
assessing environmental impacts such as noise, light and visual amenity. 

 
Environment Act 2021   

 
Schedule 14 of the 2021 Act has been translated into Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 Section 90 SCHEDULE 7A Biodiversity gain in England - PART 1 Biodiversity 
gain objective section 2(1) ’The biodiversity gain objective is met in relation to 
development for which planning permission is granted if the biodiversity value 
attributable to the development exceeds the pre-development biodiversity value 
of the onsite habitat by at least the relevant percentage’.  The current relevant 
percentage being 10%. 

 
Lincolnshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan: Core Strategy and Development 
Management Policies (CSDMP) (2016) – the key policies of relevance in this case 
are as follows (summarised): 

 
Policy DM3 (Quality of Life and Amenity) states that planning permission will be 
granted for minerals and waste development provided that it does not generate 
unacceptable adverse impacts to occupants of nearby dwellings or other sensitive 
receptors as a result of a range of different factors/criteria (e.g. noise, dust, 
vibrations, visual intrusion, etc). 

 
Policy DM9 (Local sites of Biodiversity Conservation Value) states that planning 
permission will be granted where the merits of the development outweigh the 
likely impacts and adverse impacts are mitigated and result in net gain in 
biodiversity 

 
Policy R1 (Restoration and Aftercare) states that proposals must demonstrate that 
restoration will be of high quality and carried out at the earliest opportunity; and 

 
Policy R2 (After-use) requires that the proposed after-use should be designed in a 
way that is not detrimental to the local economy and conserves and where 
possible enhances the landscape character, natural and historic environment of 
the area. 

 
Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (CLLP) (2017) – the key policy of relevance in this 
case are as follows (summarised): 

 
 

Page 41



Policy LP21 (Biodiversity and Geodiversity) states that all development should 
protect, manage, and enhance the network of habitats, species, and sites of 
international, national and local importance (statutory and non-statutory), 
including sites that meet the criteria for selection as a Local Site, minimise impacts 
on biodiversity and geodiversity, and seek to deliver a net gain in biodiversity and 
geodiversity and demonstrate any impacts are mitigated. 
 
Policy LP26 (Design and amenity) states that proposals will be required to 
demonstrate, to a degree proportionate to the proposal, that they make effective 
and efficient use of land, respect the existing topography, landscape character and 
identity to the site and surroundings, retain as far as possible existing natural 
features, incorporate landscape treatment, and where applicable consider in 
relation to both the construction and life of the development compatibility with 
neighbouring land uses, increase in artificial light or glare and adverse noise and 
vibration 

 
Emerging Local Plans 

 
Following Lincolnshire County Councils decision to update the CSDMP, a new 
minerals and waste development scheme came into effect February 2021, which 
sets out the timetable for the preparation of a new plan.  The new, updated plan 
will eventually replace the existing adopted Core Strategy and Site Locations 
Document.  As the new plan has not yet been prepared for the first stage of public 
engagement, it is not considered further. 

 
The Central Lincolnshire Local Plan (2012-2036) (2017) is under review at present. 
The consultation on the Draft Central Lincolnshire Local Plan ran for 8 weeks, from 
30th June to 24th August 2021.  This was the first opportunity to view and 
comment on the new Local Plan, which is proposed to replace the 2017 Local Plan. 
To date no evaluation of the representations received has been published and in 
line with the NPPF very little weight can be given to the proposed policies at this 
very early stage of plan development.  However, in relation to the Proposed 
Development, it is considered that the following policies are relevant: 

 
Policy S18: Fossil Fuel Exploration, Extraction, Production or Energy Generation 
Policy S20: Flood Risk and Water Resources  
Policy S60: Biodiversity Opportunity and Delivering Measurable Net Gains 

 
Results of Consultation and Publicity 
 
21.  (a) Local County Council Member, Councillor T Smith – is a Member of the 

Planning and Regulation Committee so reserves his position until the date of 
the Planning and Regulations Committee. 

 
(b) South Kelsey and Moortown Parish Council – has objected stating that this 

application widens the scope of the original planning permission.  This 
proposal is unfair to residents who will not benefit and highlights the adverse 

Page 42



amenity impacts e.g. traffic, lighting and Egdon has already had sufficient 
time to carry out the work.  

 
(c) North Kelsey Parish Council (adjoining parish) – believe that this application 

has already impacted on the residents with 7-years of uncertainty as the 
drilling company has made no effort to begin work and appears they are still 
trying to source partners for the project.  There has already been too much 
leeway granted for this project.  Egdon are now stating that their intended 
drill bore would have missed the target so are now seeking to change their 
plans and drill horizontally right up to the North Kelsey Parish boundary.  The 
Parish Council do not believe that the drilling direction won’t change again 
once Egdon have permission to alter direction and this will directly affect 
nearby properties.  The council believes that there will be serious noise and 
reverberation implications due to the amendment.  A number of adverse 
amenity impacts are cited relating to traffic/safety, landscape, light and air 
quality on leisure activities and wildlife.  There are no commercial benefits to 
the local community and question the sustainability of the proposal given the 
limited contribution to UK energy use.  Concern has been expressed on the 
potential for proliferation of wells in the area, leading to the industrialisation 
of the countryside.  Reference has been made to the international, national, 
and local policies relating to Climate Change and carbon emissions.  Finally, it 
is acknowledged that whilst not a material consideration the proposed 
development has already affected the value of property locally. 

 
(d) Holton le Moor Parish Meeting (adjoining parish) - the applicant is now 

seeking to extend the timescale for the development.  This introduces further 
uncertainty to residents in the immediate vicinity of the application site and 
for those on the main traffic route who will be affected by the development 
process.  It is an abuse of the principles of the planning process to extend the 
period for the development simply because the applicant has not deemed it 
appropriate for them to commence the development.  Residents noted that 
the UK Government is now actively pursuing a ‘Green Agenda’ with a 
concerted effort to reduce the population’s reliance upon fossil fuels.  
Granting planning permission for the potential extraction of oil appears to be 
at odds with this.  The recommendation of Holton le Moor Parish Meeting is 
that the applications are refused. 

 
(e)  Anglian Water – states that the submitted plans are not drainage related 

therefore we are unable to make comments on the above application. 
 

(f)  Caistor Town Council - noted that permission was originally granted seven 
years ago in 2014 with seemingly little progress made.  Councillors expressed 
concern as to the extent and lack of progress with the exploration and 
councillors are not convinced with the justification for requiring yet a further 
extension to the time limit.  With the increasing green agenda concern was 
expressed regarding the extraction of a finite resource of exploitation of 

Page 43



which is ultimately unsustainable, when there are more sustainable 
alternatives that are available. 

 
(g) Environment Agency (EA) – have no objection to these applications to vary 

conditions 1 and 3 of planning permission 141306 and to vary condition 1 and 
2 of 141307 

 
(h)  Natural England - is not able to fully assess the potential impacts of this 

proposal on statutory nature conservation sites or protected landscapes or, 
provide detailed advice on the application.  If you consider there are 
significant risks to statutory nature conservation sites or protected 
landscapes, please set out the specific areas on which you require advice.  
The lack of detailed advice from Natural England does not imply that there 
are no impacts on the natural environment.  It is for the local authority to 
determine whether the proposal is consistent with national and local 
environmental policies.  Other bodies and individuals may provide 
information and advice on the environmental value of this site and the 
impacts of the proposal on the natural environment to assist the decision-
making process.  An informative has been provided relating to Generic 
Advice. 

 
(i) Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority (Lincolnshire County Council) – Does 

not wish to restrict the grant of permission.  The proposal is for minor 
amendments.  The proposal does not have an impact on the Public Highway 
or Surface Water Flood Risk.  Having given due regard to the appropriate 
local and national planning policy guidance has concluded that the proposed 
development is acceptable and does not wish to object to this planning 
application.  An informative has been provided in respect of Section 59 of the 
Highways Act 1980. 

 
(j) Lincolnshire Police (Force Designing out Crime) - do not have any objections 

to this application. 
 

The following bodies/persons were also consulted on the application on the 30 
December 2021, but no response or comments had been received within the 
statutory consultation period or by the time this report was prepared: 

 
Public Health – (Lincolnshire County Council)  
Environmental Health (West Lindsey District Council) 
Historic Places (Lincolnshire County Council) 
Severn Trent Water 
Network Rail 
Lincolnshire Wildlife Trust 
Lincolnshire Police (Force Intelligence Bureau) 
Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue 

 

Page 44



22. The application has been publicised by notices posted at the site, the junction of 
Smithfield Road with the B B1434 and the level crossing Smithfield Road on 07 
January 2022 and in the local press (Lincolnshire Echo on 07 January 2022) and 20 
letters of notification were sent to the nearest neighbouring residents.   

 
Representations 
 
23. (a) 122 householder representations had been received (04/02/2022) by the 

time this report was prepared which raise concerns or objections to the 
proposal.  A summary of the comments and objections received is as follows 
that fall within four categories: 

 

• Climate Change  
 

UK Climate Change Research/Commitment/Policy at world (COP26), national, 
county and district level, quoting LCC Green Masterplan 2020-2025 and 
Policies DM2 and DM15 of the CSDMP.  The proposed development 
contradicts WLDC and LCC plans for carbon net zero.  We are in a Climate 
Crisis and urgency is needed to stop pursuing fossil fuels.  We have to 
consider the future of our children.  Flood risk due to climate change.  

 

• Residential, Historical and Environmental Amenity 
 

Impacts on amenity visual, noise, air (methane/CO2) and light pollution. 
Industrialisation of the countryside our beautiful countryside is not for sale, 
and that the interests of local residents will always come first.  The pollutants 
could be responsible for human diseases.  No screening of the site.  The 
construction, facilities and drilling sites require the use of heavy equipment 
and can destroy big chunks of pristine wilderness. 

 
Impacts on aquifers, water boreholes and water courses (drains) by the 
injection of organic and inorganic chemicals into the subsoil, spillages and 
leaks.  The use of unconventional drilling processes (acidization/hydraulic 
fracturing) using massive amounts of water.  This area is close to a fault zone, 
as evidenced in Market Rasen. 

 
Impact on the natural environment rich in biodiversity and Lincolnshire 
Wolds AONB and environmentally- sensitive farming initiatives.  Visible from 
the Viking Way.  

 
Misuse of farmland, neighbouring agricultural land is farmed to improve soil 
structure and foster soil biota and sequesters Carbon, planting areas to grow 
bird food and wild flower field margins.  

 
Impacts on historic assets, including conservation areas and listed buildings. 
Egdon should have been asked to submit a heritage impact assessment for 
the application showing the level of harm to the nearby heritage assets, 

Page 45



mitigative measures and how any harm would be outweighed by public 
benefit. 

 

• Sustainable Development 
 

The proposal is unsustainable development that would not lead to jobs and 
negate the financial, social and environmental benefits brought to this area 
by tourism including cyclists, walkers and riders.  Impacts on existing 
businesses that have holiday lets, spa and caravan sites within 0.5 miles of 
the site.  Such a small site cannot produce enough oil to warrant the impact 
on local residents. 

 
Taking an average of 15 years of production, according to Egdon’s estimates 
(50-200bpd), the site would produce enough oil to supply the UK for 
approximately 4-16 hours.  Fossil fuels are not needed, and we should switch 
to renewables.  There is a risk that the company will be bankrupt, and the 
local community would have to pay for the mess.  The applicant has lost 
credibility through repeatedly expanding and extending the proposal.  

 

• Planning Creep 
 

The timescales set are unachievable to complete the restoration by the end 
of 2022 and the planning authority have shown a great deal of leniency in 
agreeing the previous extension of time.  In addition, this application is 
considerably different to the original by adding to the development with each 
of the previous extensions of time.  The sidetrack drill would be directly 
under residential properties.  Some houses do not have foundations and 
already have cracks in walls from large vehicles travelling through the 
villages.  The proposal will make them worthless and at risk of damage.  In 
the event of finding oil will lead to further applications for exploration in the 
area.  Delays have given rise to unacceptable impacts on the wellbeing of 
local residents, impacts on Highway Infrastructure and Highway Safety.  

 
(b) Grasby Parish Council (a nearby parish) - object to a further extension to the 

time limit.  There has been a lack of progress over the last 7 years and the 
council can see no justification in granting an extension. 

 
(c) Local District Councillor – expressed concern for the physical and mental 

wellbeing of residents in the ward arising from the repeated extensions of 
time granted for the exploratory drilling. 

 
(d) Caistor GO2 Environmental Group (including petition 37 signatures) – express 

concerns and object to the planning applications.  Citing world, national and 
local Climate Change policy and provided evidence of the impacts of fossil 
fuel use.  Stating that the new site would have little impact on UK energy 
security due to the small amount of oil to be extracted.  There is no evidence 
that the oil extracted would be used in the UK.  The submission of various 

Page 46



applications amending the original application including changes to site 
layout and now proposing a sidetrack drill constitutes “planning by stealth”. 
Further comment includes impacts reflecting those received above. 

 
(e) Bigby Parish Council (a nearby parish) – The planning applications are no 

longer acceptable when aiming for a carbon neutral environment. 
 
District Council’s Recommendations  
 
24. West Lindsey District Council has made the following observations/comments in 

relation to the proposal: 
 

West Lindsey would like to re-iterate the comments previously made in respect of 
applications refs: 141303 and 141307: 

 
•  It was noted that planning permission was originally granted some 6 years 

ago in 2014 with seemingly little progress made.  Concern was expressed as 
to the extent and lack of progress with the exploration and the Committee is 
not convinced of the justification for requiring yet a further extension to the 
time limit.  
 

•  With the increasing green agenda concern was also expressed in regard to the 
extraction of a finite resource the exploitation of which is ultimately 
unsustainable, when there are more sustainable alternatives that are 
available.  It is also requested that any representations received from the local 
population around this site relating to the localised impacts on the local 
populace, can be taken into account when determining these applications.’ 

 
In addition, a further representation was submitted as follows: 

 
It should be noted that permission was originally granted more than seven years 
ago.  Permissions to extend the period have previously been granted and yet no 
commencement has taken place during this considerable period.  This leads to 
considerable prolonged uncertainty for members of the public who were first 
notified of proposals more than seven years ago.  LCC should carefully consider 
representations from local people who could face the prospect of living with the 
impacts of this site for up to 20 years if exploration leads to production. 

 
Following on from the above observations and comments WLDC now object to the  
above applications on the following grounds: 

 
1.  Incremental expansion through multiple planning applications.  This is not 

just an extension of time.  Since the original approval in 2014, this 
development has been expanded through subsequent planning applications 
and Egdon are now asking to widen the scope of the permitted activities by 
requesting that sidetrack drilling be added.  Yet, there is a complete absence 
of detail in the Planning Statement as to whether this change will have any 

Page 47



consequential impacts (eg. take longer to complete, produce more drilling 
waste / more HGVs). 

 
2.  High risk of over-run requiring yet further time extensions.  The project 

(without the introduction of sidetrack drilling) was predicted to take 49 
weeks.  Egdon’s request is for 52 weeks.  The slightest hitch means that they 
will run out of time and then request yet another extension.  Also, the 
original permission carries a condition that precludes construction work 
during the bird-nesting season (Mar-Aug incl.).  Therefore, without 
dispensation to work during the bird-nesting season, Egdon could not 
reasonably start construction work until September, raising whether 
December 2022 is a realistic prospect.  There are serious questions as to 
whether the timescales being put forward by the applicant are realistic, 
particularly following the lack of progress so far, and this may further prolong 
uncertainty and anxiety for the local population.  

 
3.  Ecological Appraisal (2017).  Conditions on the permission have previously 

referred to the “Updated Ecological Appraisal document (originally approved 
pursuant to condition 7 of planning permission 131925) and confirmed by the 
decision notice dated 15 December 2017”, which is also referred to in the 
applicant’s Planning Statement.  Whilst it is noted that the applicant 
considers that “given the nature of the proposed development… and the 
continuation of mitigation measures… the findings of the 2017 assessment 
remain valid” it is now over four years old (and was itself an update on the 
2014 survey three years earlier).  Consequently, it is likely that the surveys 
are now out of date, and the Appraisal in any event pre-dates up to date 
legislation brought in with the Environment Act 2021.  An up-to-date survey 
and appraisal should be required.  

 
4.  Climate Change and emerging policy.  There is rapidly growing public concern 

and recognised need to address climate & ecological concerns with urgency. 
In particular this is reflected in the Draft Central Lincolnshire Local Plan under 
Policy S18: Fossil Fuel Exploration, Extraction, Production or Energy 
Generation which states that ‘any proposal for fossil fuel based exploration, 
extraction, production or energy generation for the determination by a 
Central Lincolnshire authority will be refused on the basis that any remaining 
fossil fuels in Central Lincolnshire should remain under the ground as part of 
the areas commitment to a net zero-carbon society and economy.  Should 
any such proposal be for the determination of another body, then the 
presumption of the applicable Central Lincolnshire authority(s) will be 
opposition to such a proposal as a matter of principle. ’ As the supporting text 
states, “Indeed, the remaining carbon budget, at both a local and a global 
level, cannot be met if fossil fuels continue to be extracted and consumed. 
The economy needs to move to low carbon energy, and Policy M9 is not 
compatible with that need.  As such, the Joint Committee is against any form 
of fossil fuel exploration, extraction, production or energy generation in its 

Page 48



area.” Weight should be accorded the emerging policy, as per paragraph 48 
of the NPPF.  

 
Conclusions 
 
25. These applications have been submitted in accordance with Section 73 and Section 

73A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) which allows for 
conditions attached to planning permissions be amended or varied.  The 
development of an exploratory well site was first granted permission in December 
2014 (Ref: 131952) that permission was lawfully implemented, and the 
development commenced.  In 2018 a subsequent planning permission was granted 
which extended the period allowed to restore the site following exploration and 
testing operations together with a second planning permission to construct a 
security compound adjacent to the exploratory well site.  Four further planning 
permissions in 2019 (Refs: 139426 and 139434) and 2020 (Refs: 141306, and 
141307) secured some amendments to physical aspects of the wellsite and again 
extended the period to allow for restoration. 

 
26. Firstly, the applicant is seeking to vary condition 1 of planning permission 141306 

to extend the date by which the site is required to be restored and enable the 
operations associated with the drilling of an exploratory borehole, production and 
evaluation testing and restoration of the site to be completed.  The development 
authorised by the permission has been implemented and this application has been 
received before the date cited in condition 1 had passed.  In addition, the applicant 
is seeking to inform the location of the bottom of the proposed exploratory well by 
way of amending a plan approved subject to condition 3.  Secondly, the applicant is 
seeking to vary conditions 1 and 2 of planning permission 141307 to extend the 
date by which the security compound site is required to be restored.  Therefore, 
these are valid applications which the Mineral Planning Authority is required and 
able to determine. 

 
27. As these are Section 73 applications, the Mineral Planning Authority is only 

required to consider the question of the proposed amended/varied conditions.  It 
is not required to reconsider the principle or acceptability of the development 
itself.  Nevertheless, the advice provided by statutory and non-statutory consultees 
as well as the views expressed by other bodies, groups and individuals should still 
be considered in determining such applications. 

 
Objections 
 
28. A considerable number of representations have questioned the need for oil/gas, 

given the current discourse and legislative changes relating to climate change, and 
the local community have reiterated their earlier objections to both the principle 
of the development and in terms of its impacts on the environment and general 
residential amenity (e.g. highways and highway safety, landscape, and the wider 
environment as well as general residential amenity due to the industrialisation of 
the countryside, emissions, noise and light).  The local residents have again 

Page 49



expressed their continuing anxiety due to the uncertainty as to when the 
exploratory operations would begin.   

 
29. Other comment has been made suggesting that this and previous applications, to 

extend the period, have lacked the submission of a heritage assessment.  
Evaluation of the landscape impacts have already been addressed in earlier 
applications and there are no proposals to change the external appearance of the 
proposed sites would therefore give rise to any increased impact in terms of visual 
amenity in relation to the landscape characteristics of the area or historic assets 
within that landscape.  Finally, local residents have speculated as to the future 
plans to develop other wellsites in the area however, this application only relates 
to the existing sites and speculation as to future developments, not yet proposed, 
cannot be material considerations in determining these applications.  In respect of 
the heritage assessment the original planning permission included a 
comprehensive landscape and historical/archaeological assessments and the 
setting of historic assets have not changed since that time and it is therefore 
considered that no further assessment relating to heritage and landscape are 
necessary.  

 
Ecology and Restoration 
 
30. Representations received from local residents have been repeated by the District 

Council who have indicated that it is also considered necessary for the Mineral 
Planning Authority to revisit previously considered impacts of the proposed 
development in relation to ecology in the locality, insofar as the last Ecological 
Appraisal is now out of date and pre-dates the recent legislation brought in with 
the Environment Act 2021.  

 
31. It was stated previously that the developments authorised by permission reference 

141306 and 141307 has been lawfully submitted as Section 73 applications and it is 
not therefore necessary to reconsider the need or principle of the developments 
again.  The principle of the developments, in this location, have previously been 
assessed and considered acceptable and so too have the various measures that 
would be adopted to ensure that any potential adverse impacts are ameliorated 
and mitigated.  Such measures include a condition that would be re-iterated in any 
further permission granted to provide a barn owl box following completion of the 
development and restoration of the wellsite.  Such mitigation would represent 
biodiversity net gain (BNG) and would consequently be consistent with the 
objectives of the Environment Act 2021.  Schedule 14 of the 2021 Act has been 
translated into Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Section 90 SCHEDULE 7A 
Biodiversity gain in England - PART 1 Biodiversity gain objective section 2(1) ’The 
biodiversity gain objective is met in relation to development for which planning 
permission is granted if the biodiversity value attributable to the development 
exceeds the pre-development biodiversity value of the onsite habitat by at least the 
relevant percentage’.  The current relevant percentage being 10%.   

 

Page 50



32. An existing condition relating to ecology would be re-iterated, requiring that no 
wellsite preparation works involving the destruction or removal of vegetation shall 
be undertaken during the bird nesting season without the prior agreement of the 
Mineral Planning Authority.  In respect of the ancillary security compound an 
existing condition would also be re-iterated, which would require a Phase 1 habitat 
survey to be undertaken, that would include a scheme to mitigate and ameliorate 
any undue adverse effects.  Such a survey by its nature looks at an area greater 
than that of the application site and would include those areas covered by the 
exploratory wellsite permission.  Whilst it has been considered that the ecological 
sensitivity of the area subject to these applications, has been adequately 
addressed through the reiteration of the existing conditions, it is considered 
appropriate and reasonable that a condition could be attached to both decision 
notices requiring the applicant to submit a biodiversity gain plan demonstrating, 
using the Biodiversity Metric 3.0, that the proposal would meet the BNG 10% 
requirement.  

 
33. The proposal does not seek to make changes to the overall requirement to restore 

the site back to agricultural use following cessation of the exploratory drilling and it 
is therefore considered that the proposed development would meet the objectives 
of the NPPF and Policies DM9, R1 and R2 of the CSDMP and does not conflict with 
nor compromise Policies LP21 and LP26 of the CLLP or Policy S60 of the emerging 
Draft Local Plan that seeks to mitigate adverse impacts on the natural environment 
and supports development that would result in biodiversity net gain and protect 
agricultural land. 

 
Fossil Fuels and Climate Change 
 
34. The local parish councils/meetings have either objected to these proposals or 

commented that they support local resident’s objections and encourage elected 
members to refuse the application as it would be contrary to the aims and 
objectives of tackling climate change and moving towards a low carbon future.  
This position is supported by the District Council who identified that the emerging 
Draft Central Lincolnshire Local Plan proposes Policy S18 Fossil Fuel Exploration, 
Extraction, Production or Energy Generation stating that ‘any proposal for fossil 
fuel based exploration, extraction, production or energy generation for the 
determination by a Central Lincolnshire authority will be refused on the basis that 
any remaining fossil fuels in Central Lincolnshire should remain under the ground 
as part of the areas commitment to a net zero-carbon society and economy.’  It 
should be noted that West Lindsey District Council is not the Mineral Planning 
Authority and in addition the emerging Draft Local Plan is at an early stage of 
development and in accordance with the NPPF very little weight can be given when 
determining this application.  Notwithstanding Climate Change legislation 
acknowledges that hydrocarbons will continue to be necessary to ensure fuel 
security whilst achieving a transition to a ‘Zero Carbon Future’ therefore the 
proposal remains consistent with the aims and objectives set out in the NPPF 
subject to the development being in accord with the Development Management 
Policies set out in the Plan.  

Page 51



 
Extension of time 
 
35. The applicant has cited the second wave of the COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in 

operational constraints.  The gradual lifting of restrictions has led to a ‘catch-up’ 
period, which arose as a consequence of the reliance on external contractors and 
supply chains to facilitate the proposed exploratory drilling and evaluation.  Whilst 
the economic outlook has improved, issues relating to material and personnel 
availability have directly impacted on the company’s plan to carry out all the 
proposed operation phases before the end of 2021.  This situation with regards to 
COVID-19 and the incidental impacts on delivery of the project has now stabilised 
and the applicant does not anticipate any further barrier to carrying out the 
proposed exploration and evaluation.  This application therefore seeks to permit a 
further 12-month period to allow for all the proposed operations to be carried out 
in full including the capacity to complete the restoration of the site.  Although it is 
acknowledged that the local community have been aware that the proposal was 
extant the residents most likely to be affected have not been exposed to any 
activity at the site excepting the construction of the site access.  Your officer 
therefore considers that the applicant has justified the delay to carrying out the 
operations in 2021 and demonstrated a reasonable expectation to be able to 
complete the proposed developments within a 12-month period without increased 
impacts on amenity on the local community, transport network and other land-
users already addressed both separately and cumulatively.  Consequently, it is 
recommended that the applications be granted permission subject to the existing 
suite of conditions being re-iterated with an amendment to the dates to reflect a 
12-month period from the date that the decisions are issued.  The proposals are 
therefore in line with the aims and objectives of the NPPF and Policies DM3, DM14, 
R1 and R2 of the CSDMP and would not conflict with nor compromise Policy LP26 
of the CLLP which seeks development that would not adversely impact on amenity 
or the highway network.   

 
Bottom Hole Target Location 
 
36. West Lindsey District Council consider that aspects of the proposal represent new 

development.  Specifically, regarding the identification of the ‘bottom hole target 
location’ for the exploratory well, being geographically located beyond the 
boundary of the application site.  

 
37. It is considered by your officers that the proposal to drill off the vertical, to a now 

identified ‘bottom hole target location’, does not constitute new development 
insofar as the surface operations are wholly contained within the application 
boundaries and sub-surface drilling operations have always fallen within the remit 
of both the HSE and the EA and do not constitute development, insofar as well 
design and the control of drilling are not land-use planning matters, which is stated 
at Paragraph 185 of the NPPF ‘that the focus of planning decisions should be on 
whether proposed development is an acceptable use of land, rather than the 
control of processes or emissions (where these are subject to separate pollution 

Page 52



control regimes) and that there should be an assumption that these regimes will 
operate effectively’. 

 
38. West Lindsey District Council have also speculated that, in seeking to drill off the 

vertical, the proposed timescale for the proposal is unachievable.  In addition, 
surmised that there would be increased volumes of drill waste, that would require 
an equivalent increase in the number of HGV’s necessary to remove the waste 
from site to licensed waste disposal facilities. 

 
39. The applicant had not indicated in the supporting documentation with these 

applications that the variation to drilling programme would give rise to an 
increased timescale.  The applicant has now clarified that the original timescales 
given were worst case scenario that included contingency for delays in completing 
the drilling.  Equally, the applicant had made provision for a greater volume of 
drilled material being brought to surface, than would normally be expected, in 
carrying out a vertical drill.   

 
40. As previously stated, well design must be submitted to the HSE and EA at least 28 

days prior to commencement of drilling.  In preparing this design submission, the 
applicant has re-evaluated the seismic data collected ahead of submission of the 
original planning application (ref: 131952) hence an optimal ‘bottom hole target 
location’ has now been identified.  It should be noted that the North Kelsey 
Prospect covers a large geographical area, and the choice of drill site was initially 
made based on how best to minimise impacts on residential property and railway 
infrastructure, rather than the nearest point to develop a wellsite over the best 
‘bottom hole target location’ available.  

 
41. In identifying the ‘bottom hole target location’, Lincolnshire Highways and Lead 

Flood Authority Officer sought confirmation as to the depth of drilling at the point 
where the path of the well crosses under Smithfield Road.  The applicant advised 
that the depth, at that point, would be greater than 1 kilometre and that the 
diameter of the hole would measure 216mm.  Given that the ‘bottom hole target’ 
would be at a greater depth still, there would be no perceptible vibration at 
surface and therefore it unlikely that the sub-surface drilling would have adverse 
structural impacts on either the road or the nearest residential property to the 
west of Smithfield Road.  It is therefore considered that the proposed variation to 
submitted documentation identifying the ‘bottom hole target location’ does not 
represent exceedance of the scope of the original application and given the 
information provided regarding depth of target the proposal is consistent with the 
aims and objectives of the NPPF and Policies DM3, DM14 and DM16 of the CSDMP 
and does not conflict with nor compromise Policies LP14 and LP26 of the CLLP or 
Policy S20 of the emerging Draft Local Plan that requires development to make 
effective and efficient use of land and requires good design of development, 
highways and highway safety and protection of water resources and flood risk. 

 
 
 

Page 53



Human Rights Implications 
 
42. The Committee’s role is to consider and assess the effects that the proposal will 

have on the rights of individuals as afforded by the Human Rights Act (principally 
Articles 1 and 8) and weigh these against the wider public interest in determining 
whether planning permission should be granted.  This is a balancing exercise and 
matter of planning judgement.  In this case, having considered the information and 
facts as set out within this report, should planning permission be granted the 
decision would be proportionate and not in breach of the Human Rights Act 
(Articles 1 & 8) and the Council would have met its obligation to have due regard to 
its public sector equality duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. 

 
43. Finally, although Section 73 applications are commonly referred to as applications 

to “amend” or “vary” conditions they result in the grant of a new planning 
permission.  Therefore, and for clarity and the avoidance of any doubt, it is 
recommended that the decision notice be issued with a comprehensive set of 
conditions which recites and updates (where relevant) the conditions that were 
originally included and attached to the previous planning permissions. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That planning permission be granted for: 
 
1) To vary conditions 1 (development cessation date) and 3 (approved documents 

and drawings) of planning permission ref – 141306 subject to the conditions set 
out in Appendix B 

 
2) To vary conditions 1 (development cessation date) and 2 (approved documents 

and drawings) of planning permission ref 141307 subject to the conditions set out 
in Appendix C. 

 
Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Committee Plan 

Appendix B Application Ref: 144203 – Conditions  

Appendix C Application Ref: 144207 – Conditions 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application Files 
131952, 139426, 141306, 
141307, 144203 and 
144207 

Lincolnshire County Council’s website 
https://lincolnshire.planning-register.co.uk/ 

National Planning  
Policy Framework  
(2021) 
 
National Planning  
Policy Guidance 
(2014) 

The Government’s website 
www.gov.uk 

Environment Act (2021) 
which includes a link to the 
Town and Country Planning 
Act (1990) as amended 

The Government’s Legislation website  
Environment Act 2021 (legislation.gov.uk) 

Lincolnshire Minerals & 
Waste Local Plan – CSDMP 
(2016) 

Lincolnshire Minerals and 
Waste Development 
Scheme (2021) 

Lincolnshire County Council's website 
www.lincolnshire.gov.uk 

  

Central Lincolnshire Local 
Plan (2017)  

Draft Central Lincolnshire 
Local Plan (2021) 

West Lindsey District Council’s website 
www.west-lindsey.gov.uk 

 
This report was written by Felicity Webber, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 55

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flincolnshire.planning-register.co.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CElaine.Wrath%40lincolnshire.gov.uk%7Cb891fec9615541ed7b5708d920431d9d%7Cb4e05b92f8ce46b59b2499ba5c11e5e9%7C0%7C0%7C637576294890106103%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=1sqin2TYVr8346Od2buMg61mr%2B0UAMZfWbUFQEyob9c%3D&reserved=0
http://www.gov.uk/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2021/30/contents/enacted
http://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/
http://www.west-lindsey.gov.uk/
mailto:dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk


SP

D
rain

Depot

MP 0.25

Pond

Raspberry Plantation

Drain

Drain

Plantation

The Pines

D
rain

17.6m

Drain

Pond

Walker Lane

Bradstone

D
rain

Nettle
ton Beck

17.4m

Drain

Farm Lodge

Moortown House

Moortown House Farm

B 14 34

D
rain

Drain

Pond

Drain

D
rain

BRIG
G

 R
O

AD

1

STATION R
OAD

T
rack

D
rain

C
onif ers

16.1m

G
reenacres

Drain

D
rain

15.0m

16.1m

B 1434

Hamlet

Drain

Moortown Park

Pond

18.0m

20.5m

D
rain

20.0m

22.3m

Ash Holt

Tennis Court

1.22m RH

Drain

Mast (Telecommunication)

SP

Drain

Drain

Mp 19.0

MP 0.75

Drain

Drain

Signal Post

SP

15.7m

Drain

Def

Track

15.3m

16.2m

Erin Cottage

15.2m

17.2m

GP

16.9m

Paddock View

14.6m

B 1434

Dra
i n

Coppice

House

Def

Drain

1.22m RH

C
u

t le
y 

B
e c

k

Pond

C
D

Pond

Drain

Pond

Drain

1.22
m RH

D
ra in

Site of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of Application
144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203144203

Site of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of ApplicationSite of Application
144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207144207

Widen Road
at Junction

AccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccessAccess



LINCOLNSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Location: Description: 



Lincolnshire County Council
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to,

or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any 

of the data to third parties in any form.

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019
OS Licence number 100025370

Prevailing Wind Direction from the south-west 

Application Nos:
Scale:

To vary conditionsLand to the east of Smithfield Road
North Kelsey Moor

144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207144203 & 144207

PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 14 MARCH 2022

Appendix A

Page 56



APPENDIX B 

 

144203 – Conditions 

1.  The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 31 March 2023 and by 
the date all portable buildings, plant and machinery associated with the use hereby 
permitted shall have been removed, the well capped and the land returned to its 
previous use as agricultural land. 

 
Reason: To provide for the completion of the exploratory operations in the interests 
of the amenity of the area. 
 

2.  This permission (being granted under Section 73A of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990, as amended) has effect from the date of this decision notice as the 

development subject of planning permission W97/131925/14 has been implemented 

and therefore commenced. 

 

Reason: To comply with Section 73A of The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 

amended). 

 

3.  Except as otherwise required by other conditions attached to this permission the 
development hereby permitted shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
following documents and drawings: 

 
Documents 
 

•  Ref: 20271/A5/P6/VY/SO Rev 02 – 'Planning and Sustainability Statement' 
received 29 December 2017 as amended by Addendum to Planning and 
Sustainability Statement (received 17 April 2019) and further amended by 
Planning Statement (received 3 December 2021); 

•  Ref: Appendix 1 July 2016 – 'Site Closure and Restoration' received (29 
December 2017); 

• Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Geology, Flood Risk and Pollution 
Control' received (1 September 2014); 

•  Ref: 3336 North Kelsey – 'Assessment of Transport & Traffic' received (1 
September 2014); 

• Report number: 2636.01/ifb – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise Emissions' 
received (1 September 2014); 

•  Ref: 2636.02 – 'Assessment of Environmental Noise Emissions – Additional 
Information' received (3 December 2014); and 

 
Drawings 
 

•  Ref: 3336 P01 Rev A - Site Location Plan (received 3 December 2021); 
•  Ref: 3336 P02 Site of Application (received 1 September 2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-03 - General Layout Plan (received 12 June 2019); 

Page 57



•  Ref: 3336 P04 Access Track – Existing Ground Plan (received 1 September 
2014); 

•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-05 Access Track – Proposed Layout (received 12 June 2019); 
•  Ref: 3336 P06 Proposed Site – Existing Ground Plan (received 1 September 

2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-07 Proposed Site – Construction Mode (received 17 April 

2019); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-08 Proposed Site – Drilling Mode (received 17 April 2019); 
• Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-10 Proposed Site – Testing Mode (Indicative) (received 17 

April 2019); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-12 Section A-A Section through Track (received 17 April 

2019); 
•  Ref: 3336 P13 Rev A Proposed Sections Drilling Mode (received 1 September 

2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-14 Site Construction Sections (received 17 April 2019); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-15 Sightlines & Site Entrance Details (received 12 June 2019); 
•  Ref: 3336 P19 Cabin Plans and Elevations (received 1 September 2014); 
•  Ref: 3336 T05 Existing Layby on Smithfield Road Upgrade Details (received 17 

November 2014); 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA-16 Proposed Access & Egress at Site Entrance (received 12 

June 2019); and 
•  Ref: ZG-ER-NK-PA17 – Proposed Site Retention Mode (received 17 April 2019). 
 
Reason: To enable the Mineral Planning Authority to monitor and control the 
development. 

 

4.  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved Flood Risk Assessment dated 20 August 2014 received (1 September 2014) 

as amended by 'Addendum to Assessment of Geology, Flood Risk and Pollution 

Control' date stamped received 17 April 2019 and shall be maintained and retained 

for the duration of the development. 

 

Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage/disposal of surface 

water from the site. 

 

Lighting  

 

5  The lighting to be employed as part of this development shall be implemented and 

carried out in accordance with the details previously approved by the Mineral 

Planning Authority pursuant to condition 5 of planning permission W97/131925/14 

(as set out in the decision notice dated 21 December 2017) and shall be 

implemented in full and be maintained and retained for the duration of the 

development.  

 

 

 

Page 58



Security Lighting  

 

6.  Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site (Phase 2) hereby 

permitted, a full security lighting scheme, including details of light spillage and all 

mitigation measures shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Mineral 

Planning Authority.  The lighting shall be maintained and retained in accordance with 

the approved details for so long as security is required or on completion of Phase 4 

whichever may be earlier.  

 

7.  The fencing and bunding to be erected around the site as part of this development 

shall be constructed in accordance with the details Drawing No. ZG-ER-NK-PA-20 

'Access Track Fence Layout Plan' date stamped received 11 June 2019 and Drawing 

No. ZG-ER-NK-PA-21 'Proposed Site – Fence Layout Plan' date stamped received 17 

April 2019 and shall be maintained and retained for the duration of the 

development.  

 

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity. 

 

Ecology  

 

8. Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site a Biodiversity Net 

Gain Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning 

Authority.  The plan shall demonstrate utilising the Biodiversity Metric 3.0 (or as 

amended by subsequent versions) that the net gain in biodiversity would be equal to 

or in excess of 10% and include a timetable for implementation.  Any proposed net 

gain shall be implemented in full in accordance with the approved timetable and 

shall be retained in accordance with the relevant sections of the Environment Act 

2021. 

 

9.  Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site, bird and bat 

boxes shall be provided in the vicinity of the well site as recommended in the 

Updated Ecological Appraisal document (originally approved pursuant to condition 7 

of planning permission W97/131925/14 and confirmed by the decision notice dated 

15 December 2017).  Following the completion of the development and restoration 

of the site a barn owl box shall also be erected within the site in a location to be 

agreed with the land owner.  

 

Reason: To ensure the ecological and biodiversity net gain enhancements previously 

approved are secured and carried out as part of the development.  

 

Archaeology  

 

10.  In relation to archaeology:  

 

Page 59



Part 1 The scheme of archaeological investigation must only be undertaken in 

accordance with the details previously approved by the Mineral Planning Authority 

pursuant to condition 8 of planning permission W97/131925/14 (as set out in the 

decision notice dated 15 December 2017).  

 

Part 2 The archaeological site work must be undertaken only in full accordance with 

the approved written scheme referred to above.  The applicant will notify the 

Mineral Planning Authority of the intention to commence at least fourteen days 

before the start of archaeological work in order to facilitate adequate monitoring 

arrangements.  No variation shall take place without prior consent of the Mineral 

Planning Authority.  

 

Part 3 A report of the archaeologist’s findings shall be submitted to the Mineral 

Planning Authority and the Historic Environment Record Officer at Lincolnshire 

County Council within three months of the works hereby given consent being 

commenced unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority; 

and the condition shall not be discharged until the archive of all archaeological work 

undertaken hitherto has been deposited with the County Museum Service, or 

another public depository willing to receive it.  

 

Reason: To ensure satisfactory arrangements are made for the investigation, 

retrieval and recording of any archaeological interest.  

 

Highway Network and Safety  

 

11.  The vehicular access onto Smithfield Road shall be retained in accordance with the 

details previously approved by the Mineral Planning Authority pursuant to condition 

9 of planning permission W97/131925/14 (as set out in the decision notice dated 15 

December 2017) and maintained at all times for duration of the development.  

 

12.  At the cessation of the development hereby permitted any structural/constructional 

damage caused to Smithfield Road between the B1434 junction and the site access 

by vehicles carrying out the development shall be made good to the satisfaction of 

the highway authority to ensure that where such damage has occurred the 

carriageway and the verges are restored to no lesser structural/constructional 

standard than they were prior to the development commencing. 

 

13.  The vehicular access shall incorporate 10 metres radii tangential to the nearside 

edge of the carriageway of Smithfield Road and the minimum width of the access 

shall be 5 metres.  

 

14.  The arrangements shown on the approved Drawing No. ZG-ER-NK-PA-07 date 

stamped received 17 April 2019 for the parking/turning/manoeuvring/loading/ 

unloading of vehicles shall be available at all times when the premises are in use.  

Page 60



 

15.  At all times HGV deliveries are hereby permitted to visit the site, except during the 

period of production testing, a banksman shall be used to control the access to and 

egress from the site at the junction with Smithfield Road.  

 

16.  Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site, the temporary 

signage previously approved by the Mineral Planning Authority pursuant to 

condition 16 of planning permission W97/131925/14 (as set out in the decision 

notice dated 15 December 2017) shall be erected at the junction of Smithfield Road 

and the B1434.  All signage shall thereafter be maintained and retained for the 

duration of the development.  

 

Reason: In the interests of the safety of users of the public highway and the safety of 

users of the site see informative (ii). 

 

17.  No site preparation works involving the destruction or removal of vegetation shall be 

undertaken during the months March to August inclusive, unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by the Mineral Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To protect breeding birds during the nesting season. 

 

18.  The site shall only operate, including vehicle movements to and from the site, 

between the hours set out below:  

 

HGV deliveries 

 

 
Mondays to 

Fridays 
Saturdays 

Sundays, Bank 
Holidays and 

Public 
Holidays 

Phase 1 – construction of the site 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 2 – equipment assembly and 
demobilisation 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 2 – HGV deliveries during 
drilling operation 

07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 3 – HGV movements 07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 4 – restoration 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 
 

Operating Hours 
 

 
Mondays to 

Fridays 
Saturdays 

Sundays, Bank 
Holidays and 

Public 
Holidays 

Phase 1 – construction of the site 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Page 61



Phase 2 – equipment assembly and 
demobilisation 

07:00 – 19:00 07:00 – 19:00 none 

Phase 2 – drilling operations only 24 hours 24 hours 24 hours 

Phase 3 – site preparation for 
production testing 

07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

Phase 3 – production testing (site only 
manned during normal working hours 
Monday to Friday, except for 
occasional monitoring visits over 
weekends) 

24 hours 24 hours 24 hours 

Phase 4 – restoration 07:00 – 17:30 07:00 – 13:00 none 

 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the surrounding area. 

 

Noise control and monitoring 

 

19.  Noise levels as a result of the development hereby permitted shall not exceed 42dB 

LAeq, 1hr free field at any time when measured at a height of 1.5 metres at the 

boundary of the nearest noise sensitive properties those being Coppice House and 

Smithfield House.  

 

20.  Prior to any drilling plant and equipment being brought to the site (Phase 2) hereby 

permitted, a detailed noise monitoring scheme shall be submitted to, and approved 

in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include the locations 

for noise monitoring to be carried out commencing from the start of Phase 2 

operations.  Noise monitoring shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the 

approved noise monitoring scheme and the results of noise monitoring shall be 

made available to the Mineral Planning Authority within five days of commencement 

of monitoring.  For avoidance of doubt noise monitoring shall commence within 12 

hours of Phase 2 - equipment assembly commencing.  

 

21.  In the event that the noise monitoring scheme (approved pursuant to condition 19) 

indicates that noise levels have exceeded the maximum permitted noise level, 

operations shall cease within 12 hours and until such time that further noise 

mitigation measures which shall be firstly approved in writing by the mineral 

planning authority have been installed and employed within the site.  

 

22.  All plant and machinery shall be adequately maintained and silenced in accordance 

with the manufacturer’s recommendations at all times.  

 

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties.  

 

 

 

Page 62



Informative  

 

Attention is drawn to:  

 

(i)  Letter from Environment Agency dated 13 October 2014;  

 

(ii)  Comments from Highways letter dated 19 November 2014.  The design and size of 

the signs shall conform to the Traffic Signs Regulations and General Directions 2016 

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/traffic-signs-signals-androadmarkings;  

  and Highways Letter 25 January 2022;  

 

(iii)  E-mail from Jan Allen, Lincolnshire County Council Historic Environment dated 19 

November 2014;  

 

(iv)  E-mail from Environmental Health, West Lindsey District Council dated 6 June 2019 

relating to contaminated land; 

 

(v)   Anglian Water Planning Applications – Suggested Informative Statements and 

Conditions Report Reference: 14750/1/0059041 dated 5 June 2019 

 

(vi)  Natural England letter ref: 379844 dated 13 January 2022 relating to protected 

species and Biodiversity Net Gain; and  

 

(vii)  In dealing with this application the Mineral Planning Authority has worked with the 

applicant in a positive and proactive manner by processing the application efficiently 

so as to prevent any unnecessary delay.  This approach ensures the application is 

handled in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development which is 

consistent with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and as 

required by Article 35(2) of the Town & Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure)(England) Order 2015. 

Page 63

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/traffic-signs-signals-androadmarkings


APPENDIX C 

 

144207 – Conditions 

 

1.  The development hereby permitted shall cease on or before 31 March 2023 and by 
the date all portable buildings, plant and machinery associated with the use hereby 
permitted shall have been removed, the well capped and the land returned to its 
previous use as agricultural land.  

 
Reason: To provide for the completion of the exploratory operations in the interests 
of the amenity of the area. 

 
2.  The development hereby permitted shall be retained in accordance with the 

following documents and plans, unless modified by the conditions attached to this 
planning permission: 

  
•  Planning Application Form (date stamped received 17 April 2019);  
•  Document Reference: 20271/A5/P7/VY/SO – 'Planning Statement' (date 

stamped received 17 April 2019) as amended by Planning Statement (received 
3 December 2021);  

•  Drawing No: Drawing No: ZG-ER-NK-SWC-PA-03 – 'Security & Welfare 
Compound Layout' (date stamped received 12 June 2019); and  

•  Drawing No: ZG-ER-NK-SWC-PA-04 – 'Temporary Security & Welfare Compound 
Indicative Floor Space Plan (date stamped received 08 May 2019).  

 
Reason: To ensure that the development is retained in all respects in accordance with 
the approved details. 

 
Lighting 
 
3.  No development shall commence until a full security lighting scheme, including 

details to minimise light spillage and any mitigation measures shall first been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Mineral Planning Authority.  The 
lighting shall be maintained and retained in accordance with the approved details for 
so long as the development hereby permitted is required or on completion of 
restoration of the site whichever may be earlier.  

 
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity.  

 
HGV deliveries 
 
4.  The construction and restoration of the site hereby permitted shall only be carried 

out during the following hours:  
 

Monday to Friday 07:00 to 17:30 hours;  
Saturday 07:00 to 13:00 hours; and  

 

Page 64



No construction or restoration operations shall occur on Sundays, bank holidays and 
public holidays. 

 
Noise 
 
5.  All plant and machinery including the diesel generator shall be adequately 

maintained and silenced in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations at 
all times.  

 
Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby residential properties.  

 
6.  Prior to the commencement of development, a Phase 1 habitat survey shall be 

undertaken a Biodiversity Net Gain Plan shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Mineral Planning Authority.  The plan shall demonstrate utilising the 
Biodiversity Metric 3.0 (or as amended by subsequent versions) that the net gain in 
biodiversity would be equal to or in excess of 10% and include a timetable for 
implementation.  Any proposed net gain shall be implemented in full in accordance 
with the approved timetable and shall be retained in accordance with the relevant 
sections of the Environment Act 2021. 

 
Reason: To ensure adequate protection for nature conservation interests and 
biodiversity net gain enhancements are secured and carried out as part of the 
development. 

 

Informative 

 

Attention is drawn to:  

(i)  E-mail from Environmental Health, West Lindsey District Council dated 7 June 2019 

related to contaminated land;  

(ii)  Anglian Water Planning Applications – Suggested Informative Statements and 

Conditions Report Reference: 14750/1/0059041 dated 5 June 2019;  

(iii)  Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue letter received 24 January 2022 and dated November 

2020;  

(iv)  Natural England letter ref: 379856 dated 13 January 2022 relating to protected 

species and Biodiversity Net Gain; and  

(v)  In dealing with this application the Mineral Planning Authority has worked with the 

applicant in a positive and proactive manner by processing the application efficiently 

so as to prevent any unnecessary delay.  This approach ensures the application is 

handled in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable development which is 

consistent with the requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework and as 

required by Article 35(2) of the Town & Country Planning (Development 

Management Procedure)(England) Order 2015. 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

  
 

Open Report on behalf of Andy Gutherson - Executive Director for Place 

 

Report to: Planning and Regulation Committee 

Date: 14 March 2022 

Subject: County Matter Application - (E)S177/0833/14 

 

Summary: 

Tetford Hill Quarry is a historic chalk quarry located within the Lincolnshire Wolds Area 
of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  The site was first granted permission in 1947 
under the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Interim Development) 
Order 1946 (the IDO permission) and in October 1993 the IDO permission was reviewed, 
and a scheme of modern planning conditions approved (ref: (E)S/177/933/93). 
 
The conditions attached to decision (E)S/177/933/93 were due to be reviewed again in 
2008 (known as a Periodic Review) however following a request from the then 
owner/operator of the quarry (Singleton Birch) the Mineral Planning Authority (MPA) 
agreed to postpone this Review until 18 April 2014.  This postponement was subject to a 
S106 Planning Obligation which prevented any operations recommencing until a 
Periodic Review had been carried out and that application finally determined and new 
conditions therefore taken effect.  The S106 Planning Obligation was signed in 2010 and 
the quarry was later sold with ownership and the terms of the S106 Planning Obligation 
transferring to JEG Farms Ltd. 
 
In 2014 a Periodic Review application was submitted by JEG Farms Ltd however the 
environmental information that formed part of the Environmental Statement that 
supported the application was deemed to be deficient in several areas.  Accordingly, 
Further Information was requested by way of a formal Regulation 22 Notice and set a 
timeframe by which that information was required to be submitted.  JEG Farms Ltd 
failed to provide the environmental information required by the date specified and 
consequently the suspension provisions set by Regulation 49 of the EIA Regulations 
2011 took effect.  Notwithstanding the terms of the S106 Planning Obligation, the 
suspension provisions prevent any operations or activities taking place until the 
required information is supplied and if such information is not provided within two 
years, then the MPA is under a duty to make Prohibition Order.  A Prohibition Order 
makes clear that minerals development has stopped and cannot resume without a fresh 
planning permission and can only take effect if it is confirmed by the Secretary of State. 
 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 6.1



Recommendation: 

1. That the Planning & Regulation Committee considers the information set out in 
this report and Officers assessment as to whether minerals development at 
Tetford Hill Quarry has permanently ceased; and 
 

2. given the circumstances in this case, agree with the Officers conclusion that 
mineral development at Tetford Hill Quarry has permanently ceased and 
therefore a duty to make a Prohibition Order arises under paragraph 2 of 
Schedule 9 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) by the Town 
& Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011; and 

 
3. give authority for Officers to prepare and issue a Prohibition Order. 

 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To seek the Planning & Regulation Committee’s authority to make a Prohibition 

Order which would prevent any future mineral development taking place at 
Tetford Hill Quarry, Tetford. 

 
Background 
 
2. Tetford Hill Quarry is a historic chalk quarry located within the Lincolnshire Wolds 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  The site was first granted permission 
in 1947 under the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General Interim 
Development) Order 1946 (the IDO permission).  In accordance with the provisions 
of the Planning and Compensation Act 1991 the IDO permission was reviewed, and 
a scheme of modern planning conditions approved in October 1993 (ref: 
(E)S/177/933/93). 

 
3. In 2008 the conditions attached to decision (E)S/177/933/93 were due to be 

reviewed again in accordance with Schedule 14 of the Environment Act 1995 
(known as a Periodic Review).  However, the then owner/operator of the site 
(Singleton Birch) sought to postpone the date by which the Periodic Review 
application was required to made until 18 April 2014.  The Mineral Planning 
Authority (MPA) agreed to this request for postponement but in doing so secured a 
S106 Planning Obligation which prevented any operations, including the winning 
and working of chalk or the removal of chalk, from recommencing until a Periodic 
Review application had been made and that application finally determined.  The 
MPA sought this restriction as the quarry was classified as statutorily ‘active’ and 
so operations could theoretically continue whilst the Periodic Review application 
was under consideration.  However, as the quarry had not been worked for many 
years, and given its sensitive location within the AONB, it was felt prudent to 
ensure mineral development/operations could not recommence until the impact 
of such activities had been properly reviewed and assessed in line with the EIA 
Regulations and modern conditions secured.  Singleton Birch agreed to entering 

Page 68



such an agreement and the S106 Planning Obligation was signed on 29 March 
2010.  The quarry was later sold to JEG Farms Ltd, however the S106 Planning 
Obligation and its restriction remained in force and transferred to the new owners. 

 
4. On 17 April 2014 JEG Farms Ltd submitted a Periodic Review application (which 

was supported by an Environmental Statement) however, following initial 
consultation on this application it was deemed to be deficient in several areas. 
Accordingly, a Regulation 22 Notice (under the terms of the EIA Regulations 2011 
which were in force at the time) was served.  The Regulation 22 Notice requested 
Further Information be submitted to complete the Environmental Statement by no 
later than 31 August 2015 - which was an extended period reflecting the fact 
various assessments and surveys would need to be carried out at an appropriate 
time of year.  Despite numerous discussions and correspondence subsequently 
being exchanged between the MPA and JEG Farms regarding the requirements of 
the Notice the Further Information was not received by the 31 August 2015 
deadline as required.  

 
5. On 10 September 2015 the MPA consequently wrote to JEG Farms Ltd advising that 

due to failure to provide the Further Information by the date specified the 
suspension provisions set by Regulation 49 of the EIA Regulations 2011 had taken 
effect.  Notwithstanding the terms of the S106 Planning Obligation, the suspension 
provisions prevent any operations or activities taking place and only allow the 
suspension to be lifted if the required information is subsequently supplied. 
However, if an automatic suspension continues for two years and the required 
environmental information has not been provided then Regulation 52 of the EIA 
Regulations 2011 places a duty on the MPA to make a Prohibition Order.  The 
purpose of a Prohibition Order is to make it clear that minerals development has 
stopped and cannot resume without a fresh planning permission and may impose 
conditions to secure the restoration of the land.  An Order can only take effect if it 
is confirmed by the Secretary of State.  

 
6. On 20 September 2017 the MPA wrote to JEG Farms Ltd advising that as the 

Further Information had again failed to be provided within two years of the 
suspension taking effect, the provisions of Regulation 52 now placed a duty on the 
MPA to make a Prohibition Order.  No further communication was received or has 
since been received since that letter. 

 
Relevant Legislation & Guidance 
 
7. The following is of relevance: 
 

• The Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) – Schedule 9 and 
Paragraph 3 

• Environment Act 1995 - Schedule 14 

• Town & Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 
2011 – notably Part 10 including Regulations 49 to 52 

Page 69



• National Planning Practice Guidance ‘Minerals’ [Reference ID: 27-001-
20140306] 

 
Paragraph 3(1) of Schedule 9 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) states that a Prohibition Order may only be made where it appears to 
the MPA that minerals development has permanently ceased and would not take 
effect unless it is confirmed by the Secretary of State.  The Planning Practice 
Guidance ‘Minerals’ (PPG) advises that MPAs may assume that minerals 
development has permanently ceased only when:  

 

• no minerals development has occurred to any substantial extent at the site 
for at least two years, and; 

• it appears to the MPA, on the evidence available to them at the time when 
they make the Order, that resumption to any substantial extent at the site is 
unlikely.  

 
A MPAs decision as to whether the resumption of minerals working may take place 
will depend on the circumstances of the case and must take into account all 
considerations material to that decision.  This can include the quality and quantity 
of workable material; whether there is a real and genuine intention to work the 
site; the scale of the mineral operation and past levels of minerals production.  The 
PPG advises that should an Order be sought the operator has a right of appeal and 
should a Public Inquiry be held the MPA will need to demonstrate that their 
decision to make an Order is reasonable.  The PPG however also states that MPAs 
are under a duty to make a Prohibition Order where: 

 

• a site has been suspended for two years for failure to provide an 
Environmental Statement or relevant information; and 

• it considers that the tests for issuing a Prohibition Order are met. 
 

Paragraph 210 of the PPG states that there are unlikely to be many cases in which, 
after two years’ suspension, the MPA would not be acting rationally in assuming 
that working had permanently ceased. 

 
Officer Assessment 
 
8. Taking into account the facts in this case and given the evidence available, it is your 

Officers view that minerals development at Tetford Hill Quarry has permanently 
ceased and that the tests for issuing a Prohibition Order have been met.  This is 
because: 

 
i) no minerals development has occurred to any substantial extent for more 

than two years.  
 

Given the sensitivity of the sites location, poor quality of the chalk and 
consequential lack of market demand, despite being classified as statutorily 
‘active’, the quarry was largely unworked for much of the 1990’s.  Therefore, even 

Page 70



before the former owner/operator (Singleton Birch) of the quarry sought a 
postponement of the Periodic Review and signed a S106 Planning Obligation which 
restricted any further works taking place, no minerals development occurred to 
any substantial extent both before at least 2010 (when the S106 Planning 
Obligation was signed) or for more than two years since. 

 
ii) on the evidence available the resumption of mineral development to any 

substantial extent is unlikely. 
 

Whilst JEG Farms Ltd did submit a Periodic Review application with the intention of 
seeking to resume operations at the site, that application was never concluded.  
JEG Farms Ltd have been given plenty of time and opportunity to submit the 
environmental information necessary to enable the Review to be completed 
including an extended period of time (i.e. 13 months) to submit the Further 
Information (as set out in the Regulation 22 Notice) and further two years 
following the suspension provisions of Regulation 49 of the EIA Regulations 2011 
taking effect.  
 
Despite the exchange of correspondence during this time which clearly explained 
the requirements of the Regulation 22 Notice and which contained advice on what 
would be required in order to proceed, the required environmental information 
was never provided and the MPA has had no contact/correspondence from JEG 
Farms Ltd since September 2017.  The requirements of the S106 Planning 
Obligation remain in force and so irrespective of the suspension provisions, 
prevents any mineral operations recommencing until the Periodic Review has been 
completed and application finally determined.  Officers are therefore satisfied 
given the circumstances of this case the resumption of mineral development to any 
substantial extent is unlikely. 

 
iii) the site has been suspended for two years for failure to provide an 

Environmental Statement or relevant information. 
 

The suspension provisions of Regulation 49 of the EIA Regulations took effect on 01 
September 2015 which gave JEG Farms Ltd another two years to submit the 
Further Information required.  As confirmed above, the Further Information was 
however not received and so the site has remained in suspension since.  The MPA 
wrote to the JEG Farms Ltd on 20 September 2017 to confirm that consideration 
would be given to making a Prohibition Order and no response or further 
communication has been received since that letter.  Consequently, and despite the 
terms of the S106 Planning Obligation, the site has been suspended for a period of 
more than two years and JEG Farms Ltd has failed to provide the relevant 
information. 

 
iv) the tests for issuing a Prohibition Order have been met.  

 

Page 71



9. Officers are satisfied that mineral development at Tetford Hill Quarry is considered 
to have permanently ceased and that the resumption of mineral development is 
unlikely because: 

 
(i) the Periodic Review application has not been completed and the timeframes 

given for submitting the necessary environmental information have all been 
missed.  The site has been in suspension since 01 September 2015 and so in 
suspension for a period of more than two years.  No correspondence/contact 
has been received from JEG Farms Ltd since the MPAs letter of 20 September 
2017 and so, as confirmed by paragraph 210 of the PPG, the MPA would be 
acting rationally in assuming that working had permanently ceased. 
 

(ii) the S106 Planning Obligation places a restriction on the resumption of any 
mineral development until the Periodic Review application has been 
completed and finally determined.  For reasons cited above, it is no longer 
considered likely or even possible given the time that has now passed that 
the Periodic Review can be completed and so whilst the terms of the S106 
Planning Obligation are legally binding and enforceable, a Prohibition Order 
is justified and proportionate and would make clear that mineral 
development has permanently ceased. 

 
Conclusions 
 
10. Taking into account the above, it is concluded that mineral development at Tetford 

Hill Quarry has permanently ceased and therefore a duty to make a Prohibition 
Order arises under paragraph 2 of Schedule 9 of the Town & Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended) by the Town & Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2011. 

 
Human Rights Implications 
 
11. The Committee's role is to consider and assess the effects the making of a 

Prohibition Order will have on the rights of individuals as afforded by the Human 
Rights Act (principally Articles 1 and 8) and weigh these against the wider public 
interest.  This is a balancing exercise and matter of planning judgement.  In this 
case, having considered the information and facts as set out within this report, the 
making of a Prohibition Order would interfere with the rights of the parties 
affected by the Order however this would be justified and a proportionate means 
of achieving the legitimate aim of planning in the public interest. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
1. That the Planning & Regulation Committee considers the information set out in this 

report and Officers assessment as to whether minerals development at Tetford Hill 
Quarry has permanently ceased; and  
 

Page 72



2. given the circumstances in this case, agree with the Officers conclusion that 
mineral development at Tetford Hill Quarry has permanently ceased and therefore 
a duty to make a Prohibition Order arises under paragraph 2 of Schedule 9 of the 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) by the Town & Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2011; and 
 

3. give authority for Officers to prepare and issue a Prohibition Order. 
 
Appendices 
 

These are listed below and attached at the back of the report 

Appendix A Site Location Plan 

Appendix B Land Ownership Plan  

Appendix C Permission Boundary Plan 

 
Background Papers 
 
The following background papers as defined in the Local Government Act 1972 were relied 
upon in the writing of this report. 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 

Planning Application File 
(E)S177/0833/14 

Lincolnshire County Council’s website 
https://lincolnshire.planning-register.co.uk/ 

Town and Country Planning 
Act (1990) as amended  

Environment Act 1995 (as 
amended) 

Town & Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 
2011  

The Government’s Legislation website  

www.legislation.gov.uk  

National Planning Policy 
Framework (2021) & 
National Planning Practice 
Guidance 

The Government's website 
www.gov.uk 

 
 
This report was written by Marc Willis, who can be contacted on 01522 782070 or 
dev_planningsupport@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 

Page 73

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Flincolnshire.planning-register.co.uk%2F&data=04%7C01%7CElaine.Wrath%40lincolnshire.gov.uk%7Cb891fec9615541ed7b5708d920431d9d%7Cb4e05b92f8ce46b59b2499ba5c11e5e9%7C0%7C0%7C637576294890106103%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=1sqin2TYVr8346Od2buMg61mr%2B0UAMZfWbUFQEyob9c%3D&reserved=0
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/
mailto:dev_pcg@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Scale Date

                                                   ASPECT HOUSE

ASPECT BUSINESS PARK

BENNERLEY ROAD

NOTTINGHAM. NG6 8WR

T: 01159 647280

F: 01159 751576

www.slrconsulting.com

LEGEND

0
4
9
4
2
.
0
0
0
0
1
.
1
8
.
T

H
2
-
1
.
0
_
S

i
t
e
_
L
o
c
a
t
i
o
n
_
P

l
a
n
.
d
w

g

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. LICENCE NUMBER AL100012293

REPRODUCED BY PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON

BEHALF OF HMSO. CROWN COPYRIGHT AND  DATABASE RIGHT

OS DATA LICENCE EXPIRATION:

N

W

S

E

TH 2/1

1:25,000 @ A3 APRIL 2014

SITE LOCATION PLAN

ENVIRONMENTAL STATEMENT

TETFORD QUARRY

24.03.15

PLANNING PERMISSION

BOUNDARY ((E) S177/933/93)

0 2000

Metres

1:25,000

800m

JEG FARMS LIMITED

P
age 74

Tracey.Lynn
Textbox
Appendix A



Scale Date

                                                   ASPECT HOUSE

ASPECT BUSINESS PARK

BENNERLEY ROAD

NOTTINGHAM. NG6 8WR

T: 01159 647280

F: 01159 751576

www.slrconsulting.com

LEGEND

0
4
9
4
2
.
0
0
0
0
1
.
1
8
.
T

H
1
-
2
.
0
_
L
a
n
d
 
O

w
n
e
r
s
h
i
p
.
d
w

g

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. LICENCE NUMBER AL100012293

REPRODUCED BY PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON

BEHALF OF HMSO. CROWN COPYRIGHT AND  DATABASE RIGHT

OS DATA LICENCE EXPIRATION:

N

W

S

E

TH 1/2

1:5000 @ A3 APRIL 2014

LAND OWNERSHIP

PERIODIC ROMP

TETFORD QUARRY

24.03.15

JEG FARMS LIMITED

0 500

Metres

100 200m 300 40015050

1:5000

BOUNDARY OF PERMISSION

((E) S177/933/93)

OTHER LAND IN CONTROL

OF APPLICANT

P
age 75

Tracey.Lynn_1
Textbox
Appendix B



Title : T:\PROJECTS 2\JEG FARMS TETFORD QUARRY\TECH\CAD\DWGS\WKING\LSS\LIDAR_MERGE_TO_QUARRY_EXTENTS

Scale Date

                                                   ASPECT HOUSE

ASPECT BUSINESS PARK

BENNERLEY ROAD

NOTTINGHAM. NG6 8WR

T: 01159 647280

F: 01159 751576

www.slrconsulting.com

LEGEND

0
4
9
4
2
.
0
0
0
0
1
.
1
8
.
T

H
1
-
1
.
0
_
P

e
r
m

i
s
s
i
o
n
_
B

o
u
n
d
a
r
y
.
d
w

g

ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. LICENCE NUMBER AL100012293

REPRODUCED BY PERMISSION OF ORDNANCE SURVEY ON

BEHALF OF HMSO. CROWN COPYRIGHT AND  DATABASE RIGHT

OS DATA LICENCE EXPIRATION:

N

W

S

E

TH 1/1

1:2500 @ A3 APRIL 2014

PERMISSION BOUNDARY

PERIODIC ROMP

TETFORD QUARRY

24.03.15

JEG FARMS LIMITED

0 200

Metres

1:2500

80m

BOUNDARY OF PERMISSION

((E) S177/933/93)

P
age 76

Tracey.Lynn_2
Textbox
Appendix C

Tracey.Lynn_3
Textbox


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 14 February 2022
	4.1 A607 Main Street, Carlton Scroop - Proposed 30mph speed limit
	Appendix A - Site location
	Appendix B - Proposed 30mph Speed Limit
	Sheets and Views
	A3L



	4.2 Swineshead, Drayton, A52 Abbey Lane - Proposed 50mph speed limit
	Appendix A - Site Location
	Appendix B - Detail of proposed 50mph speed limit
	Sheets and Views
	Consultation Plan



	4.3 Caythorpe, High Street - Proposed Waiting Restrictions and Bus Stop Clearways
	Appendix A - Details of Proposals
	Sheets and Views
	App A



	5.1 To vary conditions 1 (expiry date) and 3 (approved documents and drawings) of planning permission 141306 at land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor – Egdon Resources U.K Limited, (Agent AECOM Limited) – 144203<br/><br/>To vary conditions 1 (development cease date) and 2 (approved documents and drawings) of planning permission 141307 at land to the east of Smithfield Road, North Kelsey Moor – Egdon Resources U.K Limited, (Agent AECOM Limited) - 144207
	6.1 Seeking authority to make a Prohibition Order to prevent any future mineral development taking place at Tetford Hill Quarry, Tetford.Periodic Review - permission (E)S177/933/93 – JEG Farms (Agent SLR Consulting Ltd) - (E)S177/0833/14

